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INDIA GRID TRUST
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2021
55 othorwise stated

Notes 31 March 2020
iis, in million
ASSETS
Non-ciy
Cipital work-in-progress 3 1.4 -
Ivestment in subsidlicies 4 37149307 15,164,056
Frsancial Assels
L Investments 5 - 331484
lia Lo ] L11361.96 T0713.80
Nomecureent tax asseis (1] 971 -
140,576.63 89,197.64
Current assels
Flnaneial assets
5 Tty 5 (R RHE] -
i sl e sl equivalonts 9 60520 212083
Bank Balances other than (1) above 11t} 4105 a0
i, L & - SOl 1
v Other finaneial assets 7 550.70 33149
14,745.47 3819.83
Total assets 1,63,322.00 9301767
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Unit capital 138 53145060 53, 14568
12
s [ £ dlufivit) 195103 (L7137
Total wnit olders” equity 55,046,72 5143147
Non=current lial
Financial labilives
Harrowings & LUEMT2T ananRzzl
1,04,017.27 3940221
Lol lishilities
Fananeral Hallities
Other fnancial liabilities 14 A4.198,05 20003
(Hher corvent labilities 15 hHy 9,04
Carrrent vax i baliey 16 - A1
H20H01 2,104,459
Total linbilitios 104822528 A41,585.70
Total equity and lbilities Y3.017.67
Summary ef stgnificant acconnting policies > 5

The aecrmpanying mtes ave an miegel gt ol e linancil statements,
A por our report of ever date
Fur SRBE & COLLP

Chartered Avcountiants
Firm Registration No, 3249082 E/E300002

Fow anal on Behall of the Board of Directors of
Indigrtd Investiment Managers Limited (formerly Sterlite Investment Mamagers Limited )
(as Investment Manager of India Grid Trust)

vl BN, — -
s
-~ i
per Hitzela Ginwala h Shah | s 'Swapnitll’nlil
lartner L & Wiole Time Director Company Secretany
Mesmbership Mumbee : 111757 DIN: 02496122 Membership Number ;24861

Flace : Mumiba
Page < 27 May Jii21

Place : Mumbimi
Date; 27 May 2021

Flace : Fune
Late : 27 Ray 2021

i L
A&

Jyoti Kumar Agarwal
Cdviet Financial Officer

Flace : Mumbai
Iate < 27 Mg 2021




INIHA GRID TRUST
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
Al simou

Noetes F1 March 2021 31 Maech 2020
INCOME
Revene lrom operations 18 1248631 10,554,140
Income frone investment in nutual frsls e T4
Interest income s invesunent in fged deposits THAD g2z
Total income {1) 12,566.61 10,731.76
EXPENSES
Legal and professional fees R34 97,00
Aial listing foe 6,18 B30
Hating fee A6.52 3474
Vilurintion expenses 05 AR
Trustee [ee EA ] 346
Audlit Fees
= Slatubory sl foes Ol Zib
= Tax audit fees - wdq
- Uthey services {including certification] 732 -
Dther expenses " w270 LS50
Flawnce costs 28 434697 2080,9%
{Rewersal of mtpatiment )/ g al in 13.497.47] 202722
Total expenses (11} 184287 5, 7hbu6il
Profit before Ly (1-11] 10,723.74 4,965.16
Current tix \7 - Gi4A
Ircoime L for earbier years (18} -
Tax expensse (1.18) 56,96
Frofit fur the year 10,724.92 4 400.20
e
Other comprelensive e
Oty commprehensive income to be reclassified 10 profit or loss inso baeguent periols
Dther comprehensive inceme nol Lo be reclassified 1o preofic or foss in subsequent periods =5 £
Other comprehensive income far the year - -
Tatal comprehensive income for the year 10,724.92 490820
e
Earnings per umnit
Lnsic amd diluted (inRs} 21 IR3s BLE
{Computed on the basis of profit for te vear)
Summary of sighificant accounting policies 22

The awcompanying notes are an integral part of the Rnancial stitements,
A per our report of even date
FerSRECECOLLP

Charterad Accountints
Firm Registration Nn, 324942 E/CI00003

per Hieefia Ginwala
Partner
[GETHEE

Darte : 27 May 2021

K plnd

For and on bebalf of the Board of Dircctars of
Indigrid Investment Managers Linited (formerly Sterlite lnvestment Managers Limited)
{3 lnvestment Manager of India Grid Trust)

o

s
& “2 AB
| et i )
/Hash Slaly e Swipnil Patit
C R & Whale Time Birectng Compar

BIM: 02490122 Membership Numther ; 24861
Place : Mumbai Plivce - Mumbai
Prate - 27 May 2021 e 27 May 2021

Jyoti Kenwr Agarwal
Chied Finaneaal Oifweer

Place : Mumbai
Thinte 0 27 May 2021




INDIA GRIDTRUST

STATEMENT OF STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS® EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

(Al amounts in Rs. millivn unless otherwise stated)

A Unit capital
N, in million R, in million

Bulance asat 01 April 2019 2H3.HD 28,300.00
Units fssued during the year {Refer noté 11} 294,649 5, L
I5sUe expens - 37479}
Balance as March 2ii20 58349 53,145.69
Changes inunit capital during the vear - 2
Bulance g at 31 March 2021 503,49 53,145.69
B. Other eguity

(Rs. in mifion}

Retained Total other equity
carnings/

Asat (1 April 2019

Prafit for the year
LER TR TSRS

tion during the vear (refer note below)
Asat 11 March 2020

Tvofif [or the year

Othug IV Y

Less: Distrilmtion during the vear (refer note below}
Asat 11 March 2021

Notg;

“Phie distribution relites w the distibutions mide dueing e il yea gz with the dist ation related o the last

wiiich will e patld after 31 March 2021,

The distributions made by IndiGrid oits weithelders are based on the Net Distributble Cast Elowes (RECE) of IndiGied under the TivTT Rogul

As per aur report of even date

For SREC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstrathon N, 324982E/E300003

e Hineefa Ginwala

Partmer

Membership Number < 111757
Plice ; e

Erafe : 27 May 2021

[519,17)

AMHLL

{Accumulated deficit)

(519.17)
4 08,2

[0, 102.75)

{6 102.75)

(L7378 [1,713.72)
10,7402 R
{706iL17) (7.004.17)
1495 1Ak 145 L.403

auarter uf FY 200920 and dues motinchude Ure distsibution reliting w the last uantter ol 1Y 2020-21

For s on hehall of the Board of Directors of

SHarsh shah

CEL & Whole Time Divector
DN 02456122

Place - Mumban

ke ; 27 May 2021

igrid lnvestment Managers Limited [for
estment Manager of Indla Geld Trust)

tly Sterlite lnvestment Managers Limited]

o ,.‘__u‘.r/ ' Ch

= Swajmil Patil
Company Secivtary
Membership Number : 29861
Pace : Murnbai
Pate - 27 May 2021

ations and Bence part of the sanie includes vepayment of captal as well

Lo
A

SN

Tynti Knmar Agarwal
Chief Fivancial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Drate - 27 May 202




INDIA GRID TRUST
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
[Allamounts in Rs, million unless athepwise stated)

31 March 2021

A, Cash Dow from operating activities

Net profit as per statement of profit and loss
Adjustment for taxation
Profit before tax

Non:cash adjustment Lo reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Interest income on non convertible debentures
(3¢ sal)f i of i subsidiaries

Finanee cost

Interest income on loans given to subsidiaries

Income from investiment witasal [unds

Interest income on investment In fixed deposits

Opersting (loss) before working capital chanpes

Moverments b worling capital :

Changes in working capital

Cashi {used o) operations

Pirect tases parid (et ol relinds)

Net cash Dow {used in) operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow [used in) investing activities

Parchase of equity shares of sal ies
Comwersion of Toan glven to sabsidiaries to equity
Loans given W subsidiaies

Loans repatd by subsidiarics

Interest income on loans given o subsidiares
Imterest income on investment in figed deposits
Income (rom investment in mutual funds
Bwestimenl in mulal funds

Froceeds from mtal fmls

Imvestiment in fived deposits {pet)

Net cash Aow [used in) Investing activities (B)
C. Cash Row from Msmelng activitics

Progeeds from lssue of unit capital

Ursit issue expense in 1

Proceeds of leng werm bogrowings
Payent of upfront (ees of fong tarm borrowings
Finanve costs

Payment of distributions towaitolders

Net cash Mow gencrated from Enancing activities (C)

Net increase / {decroase] in cash

nd eash equivalents (A + B+ £)
Casl and cash equivalunis a5 ol beginning of year

Compunents of cash amd cash cyueivilents as at vear el

31 March 20260

{Rs. i million} (R, inmi il

10,724.92 4020
(118} 5600
10,723.74 4,965.16
{624.43) [60359)
[3497.47) 262722
1.346.97 ZOBYY
(11.803.88) (9.950.51)
- (7744}
(76.30) B0z}
©93.37) (156.59)
2311 BO.20

090 662

(609} 1339
17.92 100.21
(975.45) (58.18)
(2263] [5du3)
[298,08) (11111}
(213000} {13.280,25)

{112115) 5
{67,000,14] (40,375,058
16,41259 0.7 52
1162722 1011400

181,75 a3m

- U7
{37.640.07) (32013.12)
FTAhHT 3201312
(4£.15) {Fasbu)
(5003186} {37,457.17)
25, 14040

- [37499)
6746918 22,748.58
{26653 (250.93)
[EERTRES) (7030
[7.057.93) (101.16)
56,006.41 38 406,408
1,776.37 ARG
212863 1,290.23
6,5905,20 2,128.83




INIMA GRITRUST
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
(Al amounts in Rs. million unless othe rwise stated)

Components of cash ad cash eguivalents:

A1 March 2021

Rs. lion (R, in million)
Balances with banks:
= {m current aceopts 4ETAE 207953
= Drepoesit with oviginal matwnty ol Tess than 3 months 8 242500 48400
Total cush and cash equivalents {refer note 9) 6,905.20 2,120.83

31 March ZO20

* ot of total armoun Bs %35 mullion {31 March 2020 ks 7,54 million} pertains wunclaimed disteilution tunitholders.

nchades

HReconciliation between opening and closing bal

ces for liabilities arising fram Moancing acti

et ol [ 204020 nmllaon {31 March 2020: 8il) 15 kept in Deli Service Reserve Account {TSHAS a8 per horrowang agreements witl leiders,

w5 (including current maturities) =

Farticolirs

Longt term borrowings

01 April 2019

Lash flow

= Interest

= Proceeds/ (repavments)
Accral

31 March 2020

Cash flow

= Inlerest

- Progeeds/ {repayments)
Acrrual

41 March 2021

Sy e siguificanlscconnting policies
As per onr report of even date
For SRBC & COLLP

Chavtered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 324902E/E300003,

\Asty

per Huzela Glowala
Partner

sship Number: 111757
i
LETMay 2021

1684761

(2,740,301
22ABELE
PRI

e —— L e

[3,5496.41)
HTZ0LH5
304511
0.

14

For and on hehalfof the Board of Directors of
Tndigrid Investment Managers Limited |fo
{its Investment Manager of lndia Grid Trust)

Hy Sterlite nvestment Managers Limited}

bt
S i | o
] 2 L ¥ |
i/ Harsii Shah s Swaprﬂi Patil Jyroti Kumar Agarwal

& Whole Time Birector Company Secreiany Chiel Frnaneial Officer
DHN: 42496122 Membership Nunibey - 29661
Place : Mumba Mage ;M Place : Mombad

[Tate : 27 May 2021 Date : 27 May 2021 Date s 27 May 2021




INDIA GRID TRUST
Nates to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SEBI CIRCULARS

(SERECireular Mo, CIR/IMDDE/ 142016 dated 20 October 2006 and Mo, CIRAMDEAZT 2010 dited 29 November 2010 issued under the TnvlF Regulations)

A. STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE AS AT

{Rs. in million)

31 March 2020

Particubars 31 March 2021

Book value Fair value Bool value Fairvaloe
A Assets LA3 32200 L93.006.80 9301767 1062129
1. Liabilities (2 boolovatue) 10822528 1022528 AL50570 41,505,710
o Net Assets (A-B) 5509072 HAHTLEZ $1.43197 LUk RA
It Number of units 58340 SH3.4% 58349 58340
[ NAV /D) 94.43 145.45 Bh14 102.9¢

Totisl wsets afles provision fun i et on | Bravnasad an fate vt

is ik o

1 AV,

PeKTCL and NER [ and the effect of non contiulling interest of 26% of the fir valied assets and liabitit

Project wise breakup of falr value of assets as at

tivn, For e purpuse of NAY Compuetation we lave considered 1009 of the lair valued assels mc lEbtlities of
L 1o arrive at the

31 March 2020

Project 31 March 2021

Tebagial Lot 45, 705,20 HU,065.03
Indigrid 1 Limited® A%276.90 14,604.81
Tuaeligric 2 Limived 901236 HG7A4
Patvan Trassimission Company [amited 262219 237740
East Nerth Interconnection Company Limited* 1282120 206745
LietrgaoneUibwal Transmission Limitedd 554513 .
Jhajjar KT Transco Private Limitedit 3,172.87 -
Parkath Koldam Transmission Company Limited# 623031 -
WER T Framsiissicn Linitgdif 5306139 =
Sulitatal LB8.264.63 9B,082,20
A fm Inditarad ) 443217 2542400
Total assots 1,93,096.80 1,01,624.24

* The Trust hit ac
“Sterlite Grid 3 Limited”) which is the holding colnpany of Odisha G

Phase-Al T

*The Trust acquired East-torth Intercinnecting Company Limited TUENICLY) with effect [ram 24 March 2020,

1 b the curvent year, the Trust bas acgubred Guegaom-Falwal Transnsssion Linited with effect from 26 August 2026, Tajjar KT Tr

Company Limited with effect trom 08 [apuary 2021 and MER T Transimission Limited with elliect teom 25 Maveh 202 1.

B. STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURNS AT FAIR YALUE

ed Dnddigrled 1 Limited (IGEL) (formerdy loown s ™St lite Grid 2 Rimited ") whicl is the holiding company of NRSS KX
Limited ("OGPTL) on 04 June 2009 and 28 fuse 2019 respectively.

ransistisstion Limited ['NTE Fad Indigrid 2 Limied (1620 (formeny kiiowis s

o Private Limited with effect from 28 September 2020, Parbati Koldam Transmission

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

(R, In inilllan} [R5 In i)

Tatal comprehensive ingome (15 per the statement of profit and loss) 072492 490820
Add/ {Lessl: other changes in falr value not recognized in total comprehensive ngome 11,206.03 AT
Total Return 3261095 13.396.97

Notes:
L. Fair value of assets as at 31 March
waluwer appointed sader the fnvl T rep

OZE andd as at 31 March 2020 and other changes in fair valie for the year then ¢
ations.

2. Sensitivity analysis with respect to significant unabservalite inpats nsed in the Firvab

led a5 disclosed (n the above tibles dre based on Gir valiation report fssued by the independent

asurement has been disclosed in Novo 234,




Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) of India Grid Trust

Description Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2021 March 2020
(Audited) (Audited)

Cash flows received from the Portfolio Assets in the form of interest 11,370.40 10,114.90
Cash flows received from the Portfolio Assets in the form of dividend 413,89 -
Any other income aceruing at IndiGrid level and not capturcd above, including but not limited to 78.30 177.66
interest/return on surplus cash invested by IndiGrid
Cash Hlows received from the Portfolio Assets towards the repayment of the deht issued to the Portfolio Assets 2691259 6,752.28
by IndiGrid
Proceeds from the Portfolio Assets for a capital reduction by way of a buy back or any other means as - "
permitted, subject to applicable law
Proceeds from sale of assets of the Portfolio Asset not distributed pursuant to an carlier plan to re-invest, orif c: -
such proceeds are notintended to be invested subsequently
Total cash inflow at the IndiGrid level (A) 38,775.18 17,044.84
Less: Any payment of fees, interest and expense incurred at IndiGrid level, including but not limited to the fees (5,206.08) (2,941.27)
of the Investment Manager and Trustee {refer hote i)
Less: Costs/retention associated with sale of assets of the Portfolio Assets: - -
-related debts settled or due to be setded from sale proceeds of Portfolio Assets; - -
-transaction costs paid on sale of the assets of the Portfolio Asscts; and - -
-capltal gains taxes on sale of assets/ shaves in Portfolio Assets/ other investments, - -
Less: Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested in accordaiice with Regulation 18(7)(a) of the InvIT - -
Regulations
Less: Repayment of external debt at the IndiGrid level and at the level of any of the underlying portfolio - -
assets/special purpose vehicles {excluding refinancing)
Less: Income tax (if applicable] at the standalone IndiGrid level 1.18 {56.96)
Less: Amount invested in any of the Portfolid Assets tor service of debt or interest [25,487.90) 16,843.29)
Less: Repair work in relation to the projects undertaken by any ol the Portfolio Assets - -
Total cash outflows / retention at IndiGrid level (B) (30,692.80) (9,841.53)
Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B) 8,082.38 7,203.32

Notes :

i. Does not include interest acerued but not due for year ended 31 March 2021: Rs. 34847 million and year ended 31 March 2020: Rs, 150.51 million related to
market linked non convertible debentures ('MLDs') which is payable on maturity of these MLDs from FY 2022 to TY 2024,

ii. Does not include Earn - out expenses for the year ended 31 March 2021 of Rs. 117.27 million and year ended March 31, 2020: Nil.




India Grid Trust
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.  Trustinformation

India Grid Trust (“the Trust” or “IndiGrid") is an irrevocable trust settled by Sterlite Power Grid Ventures Limited (now
merged with Sterlite Power Transmission Limited) (the "Sponsor") on October 21, 2016 pursuant to the Trust Deed under
the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and registered with Securities Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) under the
SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 as an Infrastructure Investment Trust on November 28, 2016
having registration number IN/InvIT/16-17/0005. The Trustee of IndiGrid is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the "Trustee").
The Investment manager for IndiGrid is Indigrid Investment Managers Limited (previously known as Sterlite Investment
Managers Limited) (the "Investment Manager" or the "Management"),

The objectives of IndiGrid are to undertake activities as an infrastructure investment trust in accordance with the
provisions of the InvIT Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of IndiGrid is to own and invest in power
transmission assets in India with the objective of producing stable and sustainable distributions to unitholders,

As at March 31, 2021, IndiGrid has following project entities (“Special Purpose Vehicles” or “SPVs") which are transmission
infrastructure projects developed on Build, Own, Operate and Maintain ('BOOM’) basis:

Bhopal Dhule Transmission Company Limited ('BDTCL')
Jabalpur Transmission Company Limited ('JTCL"

RAPP Transmission Company Limited ('RTCL)

Purulia & Kharagpur Transmission Company Limited {'PKTCL")
Maheshwaram Transmission Limited ('MTL')

Patran Transmission Company Limited ('PTCL")

NRSS XXIX Transmission Limited {'NTL")

Odisha Generation Phase-Il Transmission Limited ('OGPTL')
East-North Interconnection Company Limited (‘ENICL")

10. Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission Limited ('GPTL")

11. Parbati Koldam Transmission Company Limited ['PrKTCL")
12. NER Il Transmission Limited {'NER")

@ o B s

Asal March 31, 2021, IndiGrid has following project entities which are transmission infrastructure projects developed on
Build, Operate and Transfer ('BOT) basis:

1. Jhajjar KT Transco Private Limited ('JKTPL')

These SPVs have executed Transmission Services Agreements (“TSAs") with Long term transmission customers under
which the SPVs have to maintain the transmission infrastructure for 25 or 35 years post commissioning.

The address of the registered office of the Investment Manager is Unit No 101,First Floor, Windsor Village, KoleKa lyan Off
CST Road, Vidyanagari Marg, Santacruz(East) Mumbai, Maharashtra- 400098, India. The financial statements were
authorised for issue in accordance with resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager on 27 May
2021,

2. Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Trust and comprise of the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprchensive Income, the
Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Unit Holders' Equity for the year then ended and the
Statement of Net Assets al fair value as at March 31, 2021 and the Statement of Total Returns at fair value and the
Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (‘"NDCFs’) for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("Ind AS") read with SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended
and the circulars issued thereunder ("InvIT Regulations™).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets which have been
measured at fair value.

The financial statements are presented in [ndian Rupees Millions, except when otherwise indicated.




India Grid Trust
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
The following is the summary of significant accounting policies applied by the Trustin preparing its financial statements:
a) Currentversus non-current classification

The Trust presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is
current when itis:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected Lo be realised within twelve months after the reporting period or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

= Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

" Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

® Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or

®= There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Trust classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle of the Trust is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash
equivalents. The Trust has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b) Foreign currencies

The Trust's linancial statements are presented in INR, which is its functional currency. The Trust does not have any foreign
operation,

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Trust at their respective functional currency spot rates at
the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

c) Fair value measurement

The Trust measures financial instruments such as mutual funds at fair value at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfera liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
® Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Trust.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic hest interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would usc the asset
in its highest and best use,




India Grid Trust
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

o
™

The Trust uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted [unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable;

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Trust determines whether
transfers have occurred between levelsin the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

In estimating the fair value of investments in subsidiaries, the Trust engages independent qualified external valuers to
perform the valuation. The management works closely with the external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The management in conjunction with the external valuers also compares the change
in fair value with relevant external sources Lo determine whether the change is reasonable. The managemenl reports the
valuation reportand findings to the Board of the Investment Manager half yearly to explain the cause of fluctuations in the
fair value of the transmission projects.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movement in the values of assets and liabilities which are required
to be remeasured or reassessed as per the Trust's accounting policles. For this analysis, the management verifies the major
inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Trust has determined classes ol assets and liabilities on Uhe basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes,

® Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 19B)
= Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Note 18 and 194A)
= Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Note 4,5,6,7,8)

d) Revenue Recognition

The specific recognition criteria described below must be met before revenue is recognised.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured atamortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR).EIR
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised
cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Trust estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends
Income from dividend on investments is accrued in the year in which it is declared, whereby the Trust’s right to receive is
established.

e} ‘Taxation

Current income tax

Currentincome tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authoritics. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of profit
or loss (cither in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
rovisions where appropriate.
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Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilitics
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

=  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss;

® Inrespectoftaxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is prabable that the
temperary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent thatitis probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilized, except:

®  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

= Inrespect of deductible Lemporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at cach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of profit or
loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

Sales/value added/goods and service taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/value added/goods and service taxes paid, except:
= When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authority, in which case,
the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.
= When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The netamount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the
balance sheet.

f) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time Lo get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur. Barrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
the Trust incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost alse includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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g) Leases

The Trust assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Trust as lessee

The Trust applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Trust recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Trust recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement dale of the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Trust recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Trust exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Trust uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
miade. [n addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine such leage payments] or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Trust applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencenient date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease ol low-value assets recognition exemption Lo leases of office equipment that are considered
to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term,

h) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Trust assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Trust estimates the asset's recoverable amount, An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that
reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assel. In determining fair value
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Trust bases its impairment calculations on detailed budget and forecast calculations. These budgets are prepared for
the entire project life.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profitand loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Trust estimates the asset's or cash-
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generating unit's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the assumptions used to determine the assel’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

i}  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embedying economic benelits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Trust expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of
any reimbursement.

[Fthe effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a finance cost.

il  Investments in subsidiaries

The Trust accounts for its investments in subsidiaries at cost less accumulated impairment losses (if any) in its separate
financial statements. Investments accounted for at cost which are held for sale are accounted for in accordance with Ind AS
105, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, when they are classified as held for sale.

k) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liahility or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Trust commits to purchase or scll the asset.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Trust's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Trust has applied the practical expedient, the Trust initially
measures a financial asset at its fair vajue plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Trust has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the
accounting policies in section (d) Revenue from contracts with customers.

Subseguent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i. Debtinstruments at amortised cost

iil. Debtinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
iii. Debtinstruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss {(FVTPL)
iv. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a)  Theasset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash Hows, and
h)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
inlerest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

N This category is most relevant to the Trust. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subscquently measured at - y/
‘\\ﬂmortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any *
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discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, This category generally applies to interest receivable and loans given to subsidiaries (Refer Note 5 and 6)

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A “debt instrument’ is classified as FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assels, and
b)  The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.
Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (0CI). However, interest income, impairment
losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. On derecognition
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit or
loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. The Trust
does not have financial assets which are subsequently measured at FVTOCIL.

Debtinstrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debtinstrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization
as at amortized cost or as FVTOC, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Trust may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria,
as at FVTPL. However, such clection is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch’). The Trust has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVI'PL. For all other equity instruments, the Trust may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Trust makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classilication is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Trust decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYTOC, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit or loss, even on
sale of investment. However, the Trust may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.c. removed from the Trust's balance sheet) when:

& The rights to receive cash Nlows from the asset have expired, or

®  The Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through' arrangement; and either (a)
the Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Trust has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assecl, nor transferred contral of the asset, the
Trust continues to recognise the transferred assel to the extent of the TrusU's continuing involvement. In that case, the
Trust also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Trust has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Trust could be required to repay.

S/
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Impairment of financial assets

Majority of the financial assets of the Trust which are not reflected at fair value pertain to loans to subsidiaries and other
receivables. Considering the nature of business, the Trust does not foresee any credit risk on its loans and other receivables
which may cause an impairment, Majority of the other receivable pertain to receivable from subsidiary companies only.
Also, the Trust dees not have any history of impairment of other receivables.

For the financial assets which are reflected at fair value, no further impairment allowance is necessary as they reflect the
fair value of the relevant financial asset itself.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through protit or loss, loans and
borrewings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Trust's financial liabilities include borrowings and related costs, trade and other payables and derivative financial
instrument.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term, This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Trust that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition al fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value
gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI, These gains/losses are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Trust may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
methad. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amorlisalion process.

Amortised cast is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 11.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the abligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host
contract - with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone
derivative. An embedded derivative cause some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract
to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate,
index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that
the variable is not specific to a party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of
the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
assel oul ol the fair value through profit or loss.
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IF'the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Trust does not separate
embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the cntire hybrid
contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate dervivatives and recorded at fair
value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Trust determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which
are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Trust’s senior management determines change in the
business madel as a result of external or internal changes which are significant ta the Trust's o perations. Such changes are
evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Trust either begins or ceases to perform an
activity that is significant to its operations. If the Trust reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model. The Trust does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains
or losses) or interest

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original Revised Accounting Treatment

classification Classification

Amortised Cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between
previous amortised cost and fair value is recognised in statement of profit
or loss.

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.
EIR is calculated based on the new gross carrying amount.

Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between

previous amortised cost and fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in
EIR due to reclassification.

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value atreclassification date becomes its new amortised cost carrying
amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair
value. Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always been
measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No
other adjustment is required.
FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss

previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to statement of profit or loss at
the reclassification date.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assels and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there isa currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

1} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (if any) as they are considered an integral part of the Trust’s cash management,

m) Cash distribution to unit holders
The Trust recognises a liability to make cash distributions to unit holders when the distribution is authorised, and a legal

obligation has been created. As per Lthe InvIT Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of
Directors of the Investment Manager. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.




India Grid Trust
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

n) Earnings per unit

Basic earnings per unitis calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to unit holders of the Trust (after
deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes if any} by the weighted average number of units cutstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of units outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as
bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, split, and reverse split (consolidation of units) that have changed the number
of units outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted carnings per unit, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to unit holders of
the Trust and the weighted average number of units culstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential units.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(i) Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to
assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election
accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would
account for the change under Ind AS 116, if the change were not a lease modification.

The amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020, This amendment had
no impact on the standalone financial statements of the Trust.

(ii) Amendments to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations

The amendment to Ind AS 103 Business Comhinations clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set of
activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that, together, significantly contribute
to the ability to create output. Furthermore, it clarifies that a husiness can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs.

These amendments are applicable to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the lirst annual reporting period beginning on or after the 1 April 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the
beginning of that period. This amendment had no impact on the standalone financial statements of the Trust.

(iii) Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material if omilling, misstaling or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those linancial stalements, which provide financial information about a specilic reporting
entity.” The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, cither individually
or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements. A misstatement of information is
material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. These amendments had no
impact on the standalone financial statements of, nor is there expected to be any future impact to the Trust.

These amendments are applicable praspectively for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. The
amendments to the definition of material are not expected to have a significant impact on the Trust’s standalone financial
statements.

(iv) Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement provide a number of reliefs, which
apply to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is
affected il the reform gives rise to uncertainty about the timing and/or amount of benchmark-based casl Nows of the
hedged item or the hedging instrument. These amendments have no impact on the standalone financial statements of the
Trust as it does not have any interest rate hedge relationships.

The amendments to Ind AS 107 prescribe the disclosures which entities are required to make for hedging relationships to
which the reliels as per the amendments in Ind AS 109 are applied. These amendments are applicable for annual periods
beginning on or after the 1 April 2020, These amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the Trust's
standalone financial statements.
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Note 3: Capital work-in-progress

Particuliars Amannt

Asat 1 April 2619 =
Additinins
Disposals 2
Asat 31 March 2020 =
Additions LA
Nisposals -

Asat 31 March 2021 1,489

Note 4: Investments in subsidiaries

31 March 2021

Exjuity i atcost [ung ]
Incllgetd Limited 1 (formecly known as "Sterlite Grid 1 Fimnited”)
[L7.67 millien (37 March 2020: 17,67 million) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid-up]

Lssss Praowision for impatoment (Relor Note 22)

{Rs. in million}y {Rs. in million)
19302 192922
(192922} (LA29.22)

31 March 2020

Fatran Transmission Company Limited {7 'TCL") TI553 T35.51
[50 million (31 March 2020: 50 milllon) equity shares of Ts 10 each [ully patd-up|
73553 T35.53
Inelbpriel 1 Limited ("IGL1") (formerly known as "Storlite Grid 2 Limited™) o 14,044,786 12,626,066
193,35 miflion equity shares (31 March 2020: 87,30 millien) of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up]
14,041.76 12,6Z6.66
Indigrid 2 Limited {1612} {lormerly known s “Sterlite Grid 3 Limited ') * 51431 GI3L
|26.05 million equity shaves (31 March 2020: 26,05 milllon) of Rs, 10 each fully paid up]
51ea1 51831
Fast-Nocth Interconneetion Company Limited ["ENICLT) @ 129472 1.288.55
105 millien euity shares {31 Mareh 2020 605 millisn) of s 10 each fubly paid up|
¥ L9472 1,ZRR.55
alwanl Transmission Limiwd ("GPTL") » 630 -
vequity shares (31 March 2026: Nil) of s, 10 each fully paid up|
636 =
Thafis KT Transco Private Limited [TJETRL")
[22.66 milliwn eguity shares (31 March 2020: Nil} of Rs. 10 gach fubly paid up] 1LALER
LAGd 20 -
Parbani Kallam Transmisston Company Limited {"PrETCLT) i
[201.90 millien cquity shaves (31 Mareh 20020 Nil] of Its 10 each fully pakd up) 3212497
32127 =
"ransavission Limited ["NER} i@ i@
nequity stiaves (31 March 2020: Nil) of Rs, 10 each fully paid up| 1409065 -
14,096,665 -z
Freference shares, at cost {unguoted)
Boveligrad Lirmited 1GL7) (formerly known as "Sterlite Grid 1 Limited")
[easB2 million (31 March 20200 50582 million) 0.01% Optiomlly ¢ blc red ble e cumulatl
eference shaves "OCRIS") of B 10 each fully paid-up] ! L0 L0
Less: Movision for impairment (Refer Note 22) (12,37 {LonLa6]
UHEST -
Total non-current investments 37,193.07 15,165,05
“The QCRES are either convertible ko equity shares ol 1GL it the tatio ol 1:1 or redecmable solely at tre option of 16L withina period of 7 years from Uie date of issue,
W P
A \4
i1 =R
g o
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Details of the subsidiacies are as follows:

Nane of subsidiary Country of Ownership interest 9%
incorpuration

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

A Inadin B 1060%,

ted ("

il 1 Limited ("IGLI7) 0 Iiliar 100% T
Indignid 2 Limited {"16127) * India La0e, 100%
Patran Transmission Company Limited {“PTCLY )™ Indiay T Tk
Enst-North i ion Company Li diid India 100% 45
Gurgaon-Palwal Transmissien Limited {"GPTL") India % ¥y
Phasjjar KT Trawsco Private | ed (“JKTPL")" India 100% 0%
Farbati Koldam Transmission Company Limited {FrRTCL) i it India 7% 0%

NEH 11 Transimission Limited {"NER") @gn Indin 4% 0%

Bhagal Bhule Tra sion Company Limited ("BIFTELY {1558 1005 10415
Jabakpur Transmission Cempany Limited (7L Lt 10a%h 0%
Purulia & Khavsgpue Transmission Company Limited ("PETCLT) India U0y 100,
| Transmissien Company Limited "RT0LY) India 105 SLHIL
Maleshwaram Transmission Limited ("MTL") India 1004 T
NRES XEIX Transmiisaton Limited {"NTL"# India 100% 100%
Chelishi G ion Phase=11 T Limited {"OGFTL"" India 100% 100

# The Trust acquired Indigrid 1 Limited {formarly fnovwn as "Steefite Grid 2 Limited”], which is the holdin; company af NESS XXIX Tranmmission Limited {'WTL') from Steclite Power Grid Ventures Limitod [SPGVL)
[merpged with "Sterlite Power Transmission Linited" {SPTL]) pursuant o share purchase agreements dated 30 April 2009 on 04 fune 2019, 100% equity share capital of S6L2 {5 acquired by the Trust as per the share
purehase agrevient dated 30 Apeil 2009,

T

Trust avguired Indigond 2 Limited (formerly looven as “Sterlite tod 3 Limited'] which ss the holding comprEny of Cdisha G Phase-11F Liouted {"OGITL) from Steelite Power Grid Yentures Lamited
[SPEVET [merged with "Stechite Power Transmission Linited " (SETL)) 5 o share purch 1 dated 30 April 2019 on 28 june 2019 respectively, 100% equity share eapital of Tndigrid 2 Limited is acquired
By e Trust as por the shase purchase agreement dated 30 Apei] 2019,

** Pursuint 1o Share Purchase agreement/Sharel S Ap [SPA') dated 19 February 2008, the Trust scquired Patran Transmission Company Limited {PTCL} {referred as “the SPVY), from Techno Fower Grid
Conpany Linuted and Techne Electe sl Engineering Company Limited with etfoet from 30 August 20000 Ve Trost halds 749 oquity stale in the 5PV and an the renwsining 264, the Trast has heneficm imterest based on
the rights available 1o it under the SPA.

@ The Trust acquived 435 of patd up equity capital of East-North Intet conneclion Company Limited ENICLY) with effect from 24 Match 2020 from Sterlite Power Geld Venlures Linnted {('SPGVL) {metged with "Sterlite
Power Transmission Limited” {CSPTL Y and Sterlite Power Transmission Limized {SPTL) [together referred as "the Selling ShareholdersT) purseant e Share Purchase Agrevment dated 23 March 2020 {"5PA") and acguired
remaining 5| % equity stalte [ EMICL on 26 May 2020, As0f 31 Mavch 202 1 the Trust has paid additinnal consideration equivalent o 25% of the total consideration as an advance which wonld be adpusted towards payable
For equisition of 25% of equity stake. Considering the rights avallable te the Gronp as per SPA, the Group s concluded Bhat it controls NER.

“The Trust acquired 49% of paid up equity capital of Gurgaon Palwal Transaiisston Limited CGITL) with effect from 20 Augnst 2020 from Sterlite Power Grid Ventures Limited {SPGVLY) fmeraed with "Sterline Mower
Transmssion Limited” (SFTL)) and Sterlite Grid 4 Limited (56147, (ogether refersed as the Selling Shreholders") purseant o Share Purchase Agrecment dated 28 Au, ADZELTSEAT). The Trust has linalised purchase
consideration for acquisition of entire stike in GFTL and has entered e linding agreement with e Selling Sharehalders to acquire §0% paid np aquity capital i GITL from the Seiling Shareholders. The
Trust bas benelicial interest based on tie rights available to it under the SPA

A% The ‘Trust acguired 745 of paid up equity capital of Jhajlar KT Transcee Private Limited [TRTPL) with eilect from 28 September 2020 from Kalpataru Power Transtussion Limited, Techno Electiic & Engincering
Company Limited, (together referred as “the Selling Shareholders™) pursuant to Share Purchase Agreeiment dated 29 May 2020 {SPAT) and acquired the remaining 209 equity stake in IKTPL en 03 October 20240,

1 The “Truss acquived 74% of pald up equity capital of Parbati Keldam Transmission Company Limited ("I'r
Shareholder” | pursuant to Share Purchase Agrecment dated 28 November 2020 ["SPA"}L The batance 6% share in P

) with effeet from DR Janiary 2021 from Relianes Infrastructure Limited (referred ng “the Selling
CLis held by Fowertrid Corpuration of India Limited (*PGCIEL

i Ve Teast sl acgired $9% of pait wp equity capital of NER I Transmssion Lated (“NER"] with effoct Trem 25 Maceh 2021 from Sterhite Pewer Trnsmissam Lumited (SETE}) il Sterhte Grad 4 Limsted (*S6G147),
{together referved as "the Selling Shareholders") pursuant to Share Purchase Agreament dated 05 March 2021, as amended on 25 Marels 2021 {"5PA") The Trust lias finalisel prchase consideration for acguisition of entire
stlie in NER and has entered into a binding agreement with the Selling Shareholders w aceuire ining 51% pasicl up equity capital in NER from the Sclling Shareholders, As of 31 March 2021, the Trust has paid
addlitienal conshileration equivalent t 25% of the total consideration as an advance which wauld be adjusted wwards payable for ncouisition of 25% of equite stake
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Noute 5: [nvestments

#1 March 2021 31 March 2020

[Rx. in II‘Iil“nlll {Rs. in million!
Non-Current
Nan-c ible delb es {at amnortised cost)
Irubigrid Limited {TIGL") [formerly nown a5 *Sterlite Grid 1 Limited”)
(L6582 mlllion (31 March 2020; 665.82 million) 0.01% Non-canvertible debentures of Rs 10 eachif = 582390
Less: Provision for impaiiment * (250891}

& 331499

Current
Non-canvertible debentures (unguoted) (at amaortised cost)
Indigrich Limited {"1GL") [Tormerly koown 48 “Sterlite Grid 1 Limited”)
bl mulben {20 Maveh 20240: 66582 millon] 0.0 1% Non-converible debeptivees of Bs 10 cach it O445,33 -
Tatal 6.448.33 =
# Mo Cunver Uble debenture (NCD) of Face value of Ra 10 each were issued by [nligrid Limited (Tarmerly knovwn as "Sterlite Grid 1 Limited "% The NED were radeenabhe at the option of Une NED lialdo anytime after 22
July 2014 but the NCIY holders did not exercise thed af redeening the NCPs, hence the NCDs are due for repayment at the end of July 202 1, Singe the interest rate for the NCI i below et rate, an equivalent
amouit bing been re-classitied as equity contribution in subsidiary disciosed under i i snbsidiny.

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

{#s. In million} {Rs. in million]
Nouscurrent
Lz o subsiuisnes {refer note 247+ L1L36146 T0,713.80
Total 11136196 T0,713.500
Current
Lraun b st Bsddiongies frofer nowe 24) 0 - Sohoal
Tatal = 1 5661
" Loans are nen-derivative financial assets which are repayable by subsidiaries upon expiry ef period of their respective T ission Services A Further, the sul ies are entithed to prepay all o any portion
o the auks g principal with a prior wotice, The loans w sabsidiarivs carry intevest @ 15% - E5.T5% pan,

It Lo given Lo whlly owned subsidiaey is repayatile on demand, This lans carries mterest 1 5% pa.

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
s In millbon

Current
Interest recetvable from subsidiaries {refer note 24) 51030 TR LG4
Abvinices peceivabib in cish or kg 630 021
luterest acormed on deposits 26,1% A
Tatal 550.79 d41.49
Note 8; Other non-current assets

31 March 2021 41 March 2020

(R=. in million) (Rs. In million)
Advance incuine tay, ncluding TDS (et af provisions) 171 -
Tetal 19.71 =
Note 9: Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(R in million} {Rs. in million)

Takance with banls

=N curent deonunts * 427055 207993
Dreposit with orlgingl maturity of less than 3 moaths 2062505 A0
Total 6,905.20 2,120.83

Balances with banls on current accounts does nat earn intedest, Short-termy depusits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending un the immediate cash-requivement of the Trist and earn
imierest it the respective deposit rates,

& Uutof Lotal amount, Bs U35 million (31 March 2020 Rs. 7,34 million) pertouns to unclsimed distribulion wanithalders,

I T baches o of B, 20440 million {31 March 2020: Nil) is ket i Dbt Seevics Beserve Awcound {DSRAT s pee Dovruwing apreetoe s with lenders,

Nate 10: Other bank balances

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

{Rs. In i ilion) [ Rs. miltion]
Current
Preposit with veiginal matyrity for more than 3 months bu less tan 12 months § 34210 T
Breposit with origingl maturity for move tian than 12 onthsr AGH.OG .
Total A41.05 FUHLGYD

i Includes smount of Mil millien {31 March 2020: Rs. 798,40 miillion] keptin Interest Service Reserve Account ['1SHA] as per borrowing ageeciments with lenders,
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Note 11: Unit Capital

Number of units Amount
I millinn million

Asat 01 April 2019 2EIED 28,380.00
Issuted during the year [refer note below) 24,649 25, 140,48
Essuie expenses (refor note below) - (374,79
Asat 31 March 2020 58349 53,145.69
Issued during the period - -
Asat 31 March 2021 583,49 53,145.69
Note:

Duting the previons year ended 31 March 2020, the Trust raised s, 25,14 0,48 million of primary capital through a qualified instiutional placement of units, The Trist issoed and allotted 299,683,881 units al 4 frice of Rs.
HLHD per unitas per the placement agreement dated 04 May 2018, fssue expenses of Rs, 37479 millian (leurved in connection with fssue of units have been reduced fram the Unitholders capital as at 31 March 2020 1
aweerdance with Ind AS 32 Finahelal Instruments: Presentation,

. Terms/rights attached to units

Flue Trust s only one class of units. Baclwniu represents an undivided benecial interest n the Trust Each helder of unit is entitled to o vete per unit, The Unitholders have the Fight o receive at Jeast 90% of the Net
Uistributakbe Cash Flows of the Trust al least once u every six monthis in each financial year maccordance with the Tav I 1 Bl The 1 Manager apy dasteitniti The distribition will be in proportion
to the number of ihits held by the unitholders. The Trest declares and pays distabution In lndian rupees,

Aunitholder s o equitable o proprietany interest in the projects of laiGrid and |s notentitled o any sliare in tie transfer of tie privects for ary pan U ereol) or any interest b te projects fol any part thereof) ef
Inditirid, A unitholtfer’s right is limited to the right to require due adininistation of IndiGeld i sccordance with the provisions of te Trust Decd and the lvestme Management Agreement.

b Unitholders holding more than 5 percent Units in the Trust

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Nos. in milliow
Lisoteric 1 Pre. Limited PRI 2331% 136,04 24351%
Govermment of Singapore 11682 20,025 o8z 2002%

ted 068 29, 4 2
Fan Ll 20k 0355 U755 15,004
2 - 1578 3390,

Lavses And Touhro L
sterlite Power Trinsm
Schroder Asian Asset Income Fund

" Storlite Power Grad Venlures Limited {SPGVL} has bieen merged with Starfite Pawer Trainsmission Limited (SITL.

€ The Trust has ot allotted any Bully patd-up units by way of bonus uits nor as it bonght back any class of units tram the date of mcorperation i the balance shicet date. Further the Trust has not issucd any nnits for
consideration other than cash from the date of incorporation tll the balince sheet date,

Note 12:Other Equity

31 March 21 31 March 2020

[Rs. in milllnnl [Rs. in mlllion!

nps/ {Ac Tated deficit)

stiinancial statements [L713.72} {519.47)
Adlel; Prafit [or the vear HLT2 02 FANRZ0

Less: Distvibut o paid to wnitholders {76017 {6,102.75)

Clasing halance 1.551.03 [1,713.72)
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Note 1 g term borrowings

31 March 2021 41 March 2020

{Rs. in millieny {Rs, inmillion)
Non-Current
Debentures
F11% Non-convertible debentures (secured ) {refer note A Below) 435000 A.350.00
8,60% Non-converlible dehentures (secured } {refer note A helow) 2500000 2500.00
Buob Non-co e market linked del (secured) [refer pote B below) 102,19 1.725.66
LO0% Non-convertible mavket linked debentures [secured) {refer note B below) L7671 210012
B.05% Non-convertile debentures fsecured) (refer note A below) L9006 L6200
9.10% Non-convertble debentures (securod ) (refer note A below) 16,925.60 1 BET38
LAGY Non-convertile debentures {secured] (refer sote A and (i) helaw) 349651 -
7.40% Non-cotwertible debientuses (secured) (refer note A and (i) below) 992,09 -

700% Non-convertible debentures (secured ) {refer note A and i) below) 249617

T 25% Non-ronvertible debentures (secured ) {refer nate Aand (i) helow] 1,493,30

50 Non-convertible debentures {secared] frefer note A and i} below] 197408

Ta5% Non-convertibde debuntures (secured | (refer note Cand (1) helow) 26.498.93 -
[t R 2953216

Term loans

tndian rupee loan from banles (secuved ) {refer note 1 nd {ii) below) A58 163 9.5950.05
3563163 D950.05

Total 10401727 39.482.21

The sabove amovnt includes

Secured Borrowings LO4017.27 IhAHEZ]

Lnsecired borrowings = .

Total non-current borrowings 1,04,017.27 19.482.21

Current maurities

H10% Non-convertible debentures {secured ) (reler note A and | below) GPHHLES -
Innelban rupee loan from banks (seoured) [refer mote I and (ii] below) 49355 -
Interest accrued but notdie BI3.65 074
Total current portion of non-current borrowings 231603 e.74
Less: Amount disclosed under the head "Other current financial liabilities™ {refer note 14} EREINIK] HY, 74
Net borrowings - [
(1) Fhe huve tems pepresem new secured non-ronvertihle debentures that have been jssued Ty the Trust during the vear ended 31 March 202 1,

(8] During the year ended 31 March 202 | the Vrust has taleen pew b

Tupes lean from banks of Rs 24,900 millon.

{A) Secured Non-convertible debentures referred above to Uhe extent of:
(1] first pard passu chage un entie current assels inchiding loams sad adviitwes, iy receivables accrued frealised from tose Toans el advances extesdel by the Trust o its subsidiaries {divectan dlect) including
loans to all preject SPVs and futere SFVs;
[it) First pari-passu charge on Esorow account of the 'Fruss;
{iti) Pledge over 51% of the share capital of specified SPVs.

{B) Secured market linked non-convertible debentures referred above ta the extont of
(i first pard passu chaege on entive current assets including loans and advinces, any recelvables accrmed freafised trom Uiose loans and scdvinces extended by the Trust o its subsidines {diveetor indivect] including
loans to all project SPVs and Miture SPYs:
(ii] First park-passu charge on Escrow acenunt of the Trust;
(i) Pledpe aver 5190 of the share capital of specificd SPVs,

(€) Secured non-convertible debentures referred above to the extent of:
(3} first pari passu charge on entire currént assets including loans and advances, any receivables Acerued frealised ftom those loans and advances extended by the Trust to its subsidiaries {direct or indirect) ncluding
Tenithts bl prenjet SPVS amd fture SPVs;
(i) First pari-passu charge on Eserow acconnt of the Trast
{ill) First parispassu charge an the |SRA and DSRA acesunts,
{iv] Pledpe over 519% of the share eapital of specified SPVs

The Trustis in the process of creating secut ity charge on the abiove NCDs,
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“Thie bebow table shows e maturity profite of sutstaiding NCDand MLD of the Trast the pringgal of which is repayatale in full at the e of matapty -

Rate of Interest

Repayment
Commencement Dute

4350 7.11% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000
each
2500 8.60% Now-converlible debentures of s 1000,000
each

SOHHE 1% Mon-convertible debentiares of Ks 1000000
each

1740 5A40% market linked non-convertible debentures of Rs,
10,00.000 cach
D00 B.40% market ke non-convertible debentures of Rs,
14.00,000 each
2000 0.00% market linked nos-convertible debentures of Rs.
L0000 gach
2,000 8.85% Non-convertible debentnres of lis. 10,00,000
cach

14000 %106 Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000
each

4,000 BIU% Non-convertible debentures uf Rs, 10,00,000
wach

2,500 7.00% Non-convertible debentures of Rs, 10,00,000
el

1500 7.25% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000
each

L b 7.40% Non-cotverlible debentures of Bs. 10,00,000
each

15,000 7.25% Nop-eanvertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000
[
6,500 7.25% Non-comvartible debentures of Rs. 10,000,000
aach
S0k 7.25% Non-convertible debentures of Bs, 10,600,000
cach

14 February 2029
31 Augruat 2028
2% [uly 2024
24 [anuary 2024
&4 iy 2024
i January 2023
D2 November 2022
03 June 2022
A1 Mareh 20244
20 fune 2024
27 June 2025
b Decembor 2025
10 April 2024
W April 2025

B April 2026

Z022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 Z02H-2029
= 2 1350
£ 2500
= < BRI -
1,740 -
2000 ] ¥
2000 - - -
14,000
- 4,008 - ¥
2,500
- 1,500
= [ 1,000 E
= 15,000 = =
- - f500 3 E
5,000

{0 Term loan from Bank

12 Thve Trsehian vupee term doan fromm Bank corrics interestat the ratie of 7.650% and 125
disbursement. The Lerm Loan is secured by (i} first pari passu charge oh entire current assets including loans and advances,
subsidiantes {divect or inadivece) inclading leas to all project SPVs and future SPVs; (i) B

Z7The Indian ripee term oan from banl carrios interast ot the rate of B25 0%

term Joan ls seeured by (i) first pari passu charge on er

st pari-passe elange on

% ot prtyalle monthly, Entive losn ameunt shall be repayable as a bullet repayment at the end of 5 years from e date o
aly receivables acerued frealised from those loans and sdvances extended by the Trust toits
scrw accrnntof e Tiust,

poa. payable monthly. Entire loan amaunt shall be repayable as 0 bullet repayment a2 the end ol b years fram the date of dishursement, The
s currentassets inchiding loans and advances, any receiiables aceriedfrealised from those lons and
Inlireet] mcluding loans 1o all project SPVs and future SEVs: {it) First pari-passu charge on Escrow acconnt of the Trusw

advances extemded by the Trust o its sebsidiancs (direct or

3 Thie Indian rupee wen loan frony Bank carvles literest at the rata of 7,409, 7.45% e and 7.6% payable monthly. Loan smount installments shall be vepyable as per the prayment scledile at the end of 10 years (rom the

dlitte of disbursement, The tevin foan ts secured by (1) Biest par passi charge on entive cument assols inchnding lowns and advances, any receivables acerued frealise
its subsidiaries (direct or indirect} including loans to all project SPVs and future $PVs; fii

Finaneial covenants

Lixans frany bank. fmancial nstiution contain ceriain debt covenants relating to limitation on interest service covelape
swed onsvaibalility of andited decopnts of the respective Borrower permsdieally. boe e fmanvial year onded 31 March 2021, the Trust has sausied all debt covenants preseribed in the terms of loan from hanl and

arie pey

where

First pa- passu chavge on Escrow account of the Trusy

'n .

o trom those loans and adwances extended by the Trust to

0. debit service coverage ratio, Net Dbt o ALM, 8ot Debt w EBITDA et¢, The linancial covenants

LT

o ;

-\
=/
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Note 14: Other Anancial labilities

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
s in million R in million

Other financial Habilities at amortised cost

Current maturitics of long-term borrowings [refer nate 13} LA92.30 -
Imterestacorued Butvot due on borrewings B23.65 He.74
Bistributien payible 958 T34
Fayable towards project acquired if 175208 LHOT. 00
Others' 120,36 Lkl
Total 4, 198.05 2009033

# Liability of Rs. 1,752.08 million {31 March 2020: R 1 807.00 million) is towards acquisition of equity shares of NRSS XXIX Transmission Limited, Odisha Generatton Phiase<l Transmission Limited, Fast-North
Interconnection Company L. I Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission Limited {31 March 2020 - Nil), ihajiar KT Trinsen Private Limted {31 March 2026 : NIl), Parbati Roldam Transmission Company Limited (31 March 200 -
NI sl NER ) Transmission Lindited (31 March 2020 ; Mil) 1o resp share purghase Agreements:

* Other payables are non-interest bearing and hive versge lermm ol six months,

Note 15: Other current liabilities

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

ERes. inmillion] R, in million]
Withholding taces (TDS] payable b 006
GST paynble 1,50 -
Total 9.96 EAILY

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Rs. i million

Curvent tax liabjlity fwet) - 4.10
Tota) = 410
Note 17: Deferved tax lizbility (net]

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(Rs. in million) (s in million)
Giross deferred tax lial {A) - 3
Gross delerved tag asset | B} = 3
Net deterved tax lability {(A-H) X =

ation of deferred tax T ity
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
R, in million LLERT

Opening deferred tax labllity, net vl
Deterred tas credit / (eharge) recorded in statement of potit and oss . z
Deferred taa feredit] f charge recorded in 0G| - s

Clasing deferved tax Hability, net - -

The major ¢ of income tax exy for the years ended 31 March 2021 aud 31 March 2020 arer
31 March 2021 31 March 20210
{Rs. in million) {Rs. in million)

= Lurrent tax - fitih

= Deferved tax )

- Incame tax For carlier years [1.18) 2
Income tx sre| i Inthe of profitanid loss {1.18) 56,596
Reconciliation of tax expense snd the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for 31 March 2621 and 51 March 2020;

31 Mareh 2021 31 Mareh 2020

(R, trmillion) (Ees. in million)
Accounting profit before income tax 1072374 TR
At India's statutory inceme tax rate of 31204 (31 Mareh 2020, 42.74%) 434061 a1
Impact of exemption u/s 1{23FC) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 available to the Trist {3.340.99) {2.065.15)
Ab e effective incomy tax rate 13, 05) St
Income tax expense reported i e statement of profit and lnss (1iy) 56.96
Nole 1#: Revenue

31 Ma A1 March 2024

(B3, in million} [R5 in mbilion]
Interest incanie ou feans given to sebsidiaries [rofer nole 24) TLEGEAR LR |
Finamee income on nom-coivertible debentires isswed by subshliary on EIR basis 243 HiAG

Total 12,448,431 155410
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Mote 19: Other expenses

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

{is. in million] LIS in miltion)
Investment management fees (refer note 24) ALl
Rent 037 -
Habes anik tayes TAS 125
Insurange expenses 027 0.64
Vehicle hre charges (L06 -
Interest on TS ER -
Earnoul Expenses * 796,62 -
Miscellaneons expenses 17,66 Gl
Tatal 22794 B.50

“Earn ot expense of INR 79662 millian for year cided 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: Nil) paid ts $terlite Power Grid Yentures fnow mncrged with Storlite By

mver Transmission Limited) on aceount of amounts received by
the Trust due o change in lnw orders recenved by its subsldiary entities, Such amounts are passed on ts the selling sharcholder as per the terms of the respecti

ve agreenents with them,

Note 20: Finance Cost

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(Rs. In million] (R b million)
Financial Habilitles measured at smortised cost 4,315.42 29749.83
Dther bank and finange charpes 1,55 L6
Total 4,346,97 2.980.99

Note 21; Earnings per unit (EPU)
Baste EPU amounts are caloulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable o wiit holdars by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the vear.

Biluted EPLEamounts are caleulated by dividing the prafitatcrtbutable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of units that wonld be |ssued
o eonversion of all the dilutive patential units into unit capital.

The following reflects in the profitand unit data used in tee basie and diluted BRI computation

31 March 2020
Rs. in

Profitafter tax for calouliting basic and dilured EPU{Rs, in millisn) 10,724.92

Weighted average number of units in caleulating bashe and diluted EPU (N, in millisn ) SH3. S5A01
Ewrmings Per Unit

Hasiv and Diluted [Rupees finit) 108348 e
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Note 22: Sianifi acoounting jud i il i

The preparation of the Trust's G i requines bo ke jud, etimales and assmpions that affect the veported ts ol revenue, ey ., assets and liahilites and the accomp o
discinsures, 1 inty abul these pEions and esti could tesullin euteomes Uit require a material adjustment to the carrying ameunt of assets o HabiliGes sflected in luture periods.

Tithe progess of applying the Trust's ing policles, fras made the following judgements. which have the mast significant effect on the amaunts recognised in the financlal statements.

{a) Classification of Unitholders funds

Hneler the provisions of the InviT Regulations, lndiGrid is required w distribute t wltiolders not less than ninety percent of the net distributable cash ows of Indificid for each fnancial year. Accordingly, i portion of the
unibtlobders” unds contains o contyetial ohligation of the Trust to pay Lo i | cash distributi Fhe Tobders” Tunds cauld L Frave beenclssifed as compound il mstrument wivich contain botl
cnuity and lability components in accordance with Ind A5 32 - Financhal Instruments; Presentation, However, inaccordance with SEBT Circulars (Mo CIR/AMDYDF L1420 16 dated 20-0ct-2006 and No.
CIRAMD/DFS127 /2016 dated 29 November 2016 issied wndor the nul T Regulations, the unithalders' funds have been dassified as eruity in ardey to comply with the mandatory requivements of Section 1 of Annexure A
Lo the SER] Clrcular dared 20 Octaber 2016 dealing with the minina disclosures oy By dinancial statements, b fine with e abave, the distefbution payable o unit holders is recognised as liabilive when the same ks
appraved by the Investment Manager,

Estimates and assumptions

‘The key assumptions concerning the filure and other leey sources ol estimation uncertainy at the reparting date, that have a significant risk of caising » material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels and liabilitles
or fair value disclosures within the next il year, are described below, The Trust hased its plions and [T itable when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circunsstances sl
ahout fulure devel hawever, may change dee to macket chawges of circumstances atsing tat are beyond the contral of the Trus. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they seeur,

{a] Fair valuation and disclosures
SERI Circulars issured under the InvIT Regubations require disclosures relating to net assets ab Fale value and total Feturns at faiv value (rofor note 234 amd 23B). lnestimatlng the fair value of investments n subsidiar
(which constitale substantial portion of the net assets), the Trust engages independent qualitied external valuers 1o perform the valuation. The management works closely with the valuers to establish the appropriate

vatlwation Lechntyues and inputs W the mudel The reprrls Uhe valwation report and Tndings w Uie Buard of the lnvestment Manzer guarterly woexplain tie cause of Aucleations in the Gic vidue of Uye
transmiission projects, The inputs 1o the valuation models are talen from shservable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of |ud pement i reguired in fair values. Jud inelude
congiderations of inputs sueh s WACE, Tax rates, lndlation rates, e, Changes in assumplions aboul these factors could atlect the tair value,

(b} Impairment af non-Mnancial assets

Maup-linancial assets of the Trust pricninily coniprise of investonents i subsidianes,

Ihe provisian for inpaiinent freversal) ol impaiceient of Ivestiments in suhsiliasies is e Baged on the difle) ¢ botween the cartying smounts and the recoverable amounts, Thi fecoverable Amsunt of the

i in subsgidiaries has been 1 | by external independ i experts based on value in use caloulation for the underlying projects (based on discounted cash flow madel], Un a perindic basis, sccording
1o the r b of individual portiolin asset puted by the valuation experts, the Trust tests impairment an the amounts invested (m the respective subsidiary eompanics. Based on the valuation exercise so

cantied aut, thes ¢ s tet impairnient rever sal of Rs, 5497.47 million forthe vear ended 31 Mareh 2021 Drein caided 31 Mareh 2020: Impainment provision of s 2,627.22 million] which |5 primarily v aveount of dhange in
visk premium and other underlying assumptions.

The key used to determine the rec

I amount lor the wnderlying projects ste disclosed and T ther wxplained in Nute 234,
Nute 23A: Fair value measarements

The managentent has assessed that the NMnancial assets and linancial liabilities as at year end are roasonable apprexinutions ot thetr dair values,

‘v Trwst Bs reguired o present the statement of total assets at fur valye and statement of tolal retirns an falr valie as perSEBI Ciccular Ne, CIRSIMO/DE/ 8142006 dated 20 Octaber 2006 a5 a part of these financial
statements- Refer Statement of Net Assels at Falt Valae and Statement of Total Reton ns ot Eair Value,

The iputs Lo the watation models for compiitatton of L value of assets for the whove mentansd stitemonts are tleen (Fom nhservable markots where passsible, but where this is not feasible. s degree of judgerent is
quired in Firir values. Jud, Inehule considerations of inputs such as WACE, Tax rates, Inflation rates, ete,

Pl signiteant unobservalile mpats ssed i the falr value measurement veuired for disclosures categoiised within Level 3 of the fair vatue lierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity anabysis asau 31 March 2021

and 31 March 2020 are as shown belows

Description of significant robservabie inputs to valuation: (Bs in million}

Significant unobservahle inputs Input for 31 March Input for 31 Maregh  Sensitivity of lnput to Increase f[decrease) in fair value
2021 2020 the (i value 41 Mavch 2021 31 March 2020
WACC THT% 1012305 B o099, 5% FLLA36.00) LLT649.00)
=55 9,083.00 GG
Tax rate {nurmal e and MAT) Wormmal Tax- 25.068%  Normal Tax- 25.168% + 2% {4nrzzy [1.277.63)
Era 174.92 131193
: Reverie: 5.00% 1% (LBL0.04) (788.38)
Inflation rate Expenses; 2.63% to
497 - 1% L9550 529.45
The ind tent valuor has dered efiect of COVIN-19 on the significant uhobservable inputs wsed in fir valiuation as reforfed above,
Note 238: Fair value hierarchy
“The [nflowing table provides the § alue measurement hierarchy of the Trust's assets and Dbl tes:
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets agat 31 Mareh 2021 and 31 Mavceh 2020:
R i
Fair value measured
Dite ofvaluation  Queoted prices inactive Significant observable Significant wnobservable
murkets inputs inputs
[Level 1) {Level 2} {Level 3)
Assets for which falr values are disclosed:
Investiment mesubsidineies {nebuding loan o subsidiaries) 31 Marely 2021 - - LEAFTE 16
31 March 2020 w - URIGG.09

ave been o ansters among Level 1 Level 2 and Level 3,
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Note 24: Related party disclosnres
1L List af related parties as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

{a) Name of related pacty and nature of its relationship:
Subsidiaries

Indigrid Limived (formerly kanowi s Sterlite Grid § Limited ]
Tndigrid | Liseted {formerly known as Sterlite find 2
Indigrid 2 Limited (formerly known as Stedie Grid 3
Bhopal Bhule Transmission Company Limited (BO7CL)

Tabalpur Transmizsion Company Limited {JTCL)

Maheshwearam Transnission Limited {MTL)

RAPP Transmuission Company Limited (RTCL)

Purulia & Kharappur Transmission Company Limited (FKTCLY

Tatean Transmission Company Limited (FTCL}

HMRSE WK Transmission Limited (NTL)

Dilisha ion Phase 10 isslon Limiled (OGPTL)

East-North Interconnection Company Limited (ENICL)

Gurgaon-Palbwal T) mission Limited {GFTL] ({rom 28 August 2020)

[hanjfar KT Tramseo Private Linited (IKTPL] (from 28 September 2020)

Parbiath Keddam Transmissi any Lamited {"FrETCLY {rom 08 January 2021)
NER H Transmission Limited SR (Trem 25 March 2021)

{h) Other related parties under Ind AS-24 with whom transactions bave taken place during the yeat

ities with significant influence over the Trust

s 1 Pre. Lad {irom May 04, 2019) - Sponsor wee.l, 28 Soptember 2020

Sterlie Power Grid Vestures Limiced (SPGVLY® - Sponsur aml Project manaper of IndiGeid - upto 15 November 2020
Sterlite Power Transmission Limitesd {SPTL) - Sponsor and Project manager of IndiGrid - weed, 15 November 2020
Sterlite drie 4 Limited {5614 ) - Subsidiary of Sponsoey

11 List of related parties as per Regulation 2{1]{zv] ofthe InvIT Regulations

{a) Parties to IndiGrid

Sterdite Power Ventures Limited (SPGVL)" - Sponsor and Proleet manager of IndiGrid (upto 15 November 2020)

Sterdite Power Teansmission Limited (S9T1) - Spossor and Project manager of IndiGid {w.el 15 November 20207

Indigrid Invesiment Managers Limitedd (formerly Sterlite Investment Managers Limited) (1BL) - lnvestnent manager of IndiGrid
Axis Trustee Services Limited {ATSLY - Toustee of IndiGrid

Esoteric 1 e, Lid (Trom (4 May 20 19) (EPL) - Sponsur w,e,L 28 Seprember 2020

(b) Prometers of the parties to IndiGrid specified in (2) above
Twin $tar Overseas Limited - Promoter of SPTL

Swerlite Pawer Toansmission Limited - Promoter of IML®

Electron IM Pre. Lul. - Promoter of 1M1, *

Axis Hank Linnited - Promoter of ATSL

BRI Ingrid Co-lnvest L.P-Cayman 1sland - Promoterof EPL

[c} Directors of the parties to IndiGrid specified n fa) above

Birectors of SPTL:

Fravin Agarwal

Pratik Agarwal

Al Marayanaswamy

Arwn Fodarwal Lalchand

Ehao Hlaia

Avaantiba Kaldear (Lll 02 Febroary 2021)
Ancag Seth

Directors of 1IML:
Pratik Agarwal
T

i )
Late Shashilunt Bhojank (11022 july 2020)
Rabuk Asthana

Harsl Shah (CEQ il whole time director)
Sanjay Cmpraloash Nayar (from 07 June 2019)
Atk Sethi {from 20 October 2020)

Fouldip Eumar s (0l 07 June 20149)

Key Managerial Personnel of IIML:

Harsh Shal {CEG and whale time diveetor)

ot Kuman Aparwal {CFO wel 16 September 2020)
Swapnil Patil { Company Sccretary]

Directors of ATSL!

Rajesty Kumar Dahiya

Sanjay Sinha

Ganesh Sanleran (Trom 18 April 2019)

o Bhavoseylal Vaish (6l 08 November 2019)

Directors of Esoteric IF Pre, L.

Velasoo Azonos Cecilio Francisco (fram 19 February 2021)
Tong fin Rong (from 14 February 2021)

Mgan Mim Yiog (from 19 Felruary 2021)

Mopng Wl Kiu (W1 E9 Felires w21y

Terenve Les Chi Ve (xill 19 Ty 2021

Cood ¥i fus €01 19 Februay 2021)

Relative of directors mentioned above:
Sonalshi Agarwal

Jrats Aparweal

Sujata Asthana

Mala Todarwal
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Firtn in which dircctor of sponsor is partones:
Cyril Amarchand Mangaldas (41l 02 Febraary 2021)

* Druring the previeus year, Electron 1M Ple, Lid, purchased 40% stk in Indigrid Investment Managers Limitod {foomer Iy Stevfite Investment Managers Linsited ) (IIML] fromn Sterfite Power Transmission Limited post which

Electron IM Pte. Ltd. holids 60% of stake i 1ML
# steviie Power Grid Venvares Limited ('SPGYL') has beon merped with Stecliie Power Transmission Limited {51,

(B} The transactions with related parties during the year are ns follows:-

(Rs. fn millions)
Particulars Relation 2020-21 2019-20
1, Unsecured loans ghven to subsidiarics
Bhopal Dhule Transmission Company Limited (BNTCL) Subsidlavy 4744 20
Jabalpur Transmission Company Limited (JTCL) Subsidiary 1Lon0 35 1.203.10
Maheshwaram Transimission Limited {(MT1.} Subsidiary lazaod -
RAPP Trans: Company Limited [ETCL) Subisidiary 2R354 -
el & Klavagpan Teanssnssion Company Limived (PETCEL) Subsidiary 535.008 =
Fatran Transmission Company Limited {FTCL) Subsidiary 676,40 -
WRSS XXX Transmission Limited (NRSS) Subsidiary 19, L4097 d0AR3AY
Chelishia L don Phase 1177 hon Limated (SGFTL) Subsidiary 151.31 O 143.52
East-North Intéreonmection Company Limited {(ENJCL) Sulsidbary 12,033.25 -
Gurgaon-Falwal Transmission |lmited [GPT1.) Subsidiary ORHLIN
[hajjar KT Tramsen Private Limited [JETPL) Subzsdlary L793.67 -
NER I Transmlssion Limited {MER) Subshdlary 2730557
Iindigrid Limited {161} Subsidiary ML -
Iradign il 1 Edrmited (1GL1) Sulisidiary 3t.z2 1oeans
Indigrid 2 Limuted {1GL2} Subsidiary 1% -
Z.Rey of loan from subsidiaries
Bhopal Dhule Transmission Company Limited (BITCLY YERATR a0,
i e Tragsmissaen Comngrany Limited {TCL) To0.00 0914
Mahesh i Transmission Limited {MTL] Substdiary 4146 -
RAFE Traj mited (RUTCL) Sulisidiary 34907 13117
e Company Limited {PKTCL) Sobaidiary G062 126,25
Iatran Transmission Company Limited (IFTCL) Subsidinry H753 33.71
NRSE KX Transolsslon ted {NRSS] Substdlary 19,2905 377
disha G ion Phase I Tr. isslon Limited [(MGPTL) Subsidiary 42132 IEENE
Last-North Interconnection Company Limited (ENICL) Subsidiary 355190 26,40
Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission Limited (GPTL) Subsidiary 40217 .
Thajjar KT Transee Private Limited (JETPL) 7337 -
Incligrad Limited (1GL] - 25280
Indigricd 2 Limited (1GL.2) Sulwidiany 20 205972
4. Interest income from subsidiaries
Blhopal Bhole smmission Company Limited (BRTCL) Sulbwadiary 132164 L0615
[absalpur Transmission Company Limited (ITEL) Subsidiary 272980 154168
Makeshwaram Transmission Limited (MT1) Subzidiary SH1.TH SHH.58
RAPE Transnnssion Compsmgy Limiled (1) Subsuliary EETXVES 24517
Purulia & Kharagpur Transmission Comp: mited (PRICL) Subisidiary SHI.OH 592.64
Patran Transmisslon Company Limited {177 Subsidiary aRITR 236,71
NLSE XXX Transmnssion Limited {NHSS) Subsidiay 4 099,41 LG
Odisha Generation Phase (1 Transmission Limited (OGPTL) Subgidiary 0567 62156
East-North Interconmection Company Linited (ERICLY Subsidiary 0 -
Gurgaon-Palvwal Transmission Limited (GETL) Subsidiary 252470 -
fhajjar KT Transco Frivate Limited (JKTPL) Subsidiary LN S -
HER N Teansmission Limited {NER) Subssdiary THES -
indigrid Linitad {IGL) Subsadiary 13.81 17,45
Incigric 1 tedd [101) Sulssdiary 171.54 12771
Ernelipried 2 Limdtod (1GL2) Subsidiary B9.55 Ho20
4. Cotwersion of subsidiary loan amd interest omstanding to equity
Tieligrid 1 Limited Subsidiary 137797 -
5. Purchase of equity shares of Tndigrid 1 Linited (formerly known as Sterlite Geid 2 Limited)
Sterlite Power Grid Ventures Limited” Spenser and Froject Manager /Entity with 3713 12,024.66
stagnificant nfleence
6, Purchase of equity shares of Indigrid 2 Limited (formerly known as Steclite Grid 3 Limited)
Stevlite Power Grid Ventures Limited” Spunsorand Project Manages /Entity with 514,31
significant influenee
7. Purclase of foan to Indigrld 2 Limited (formesly known as Sterlite Grid 3 Limited)
Sterlite Power Grid Venlures Lunied* Spamsa wnid Project Manager /Entity with - 225040
significant influence
8. Purchase of equily shares of ENICL
Stertite Power Grid Ventures Limited™ Sponser and Froject Manager/Eatity with 617 125440
Stanilicant mfluence
Sterlite Power Transmission Limited Promoter of project manige ) - .09
. Purehise of lown Lo ENICL
Sterlite Power Grid Ventures Limnited® Sponsar and Project Manager/Entity with SHT.NN
signilicant influenece
10. Purchase of cquity shares of GPTL
Steriite Grid 4 Limited Susidiary of Sponser/Entity with signilicant UG

11 Purchase of loan to GPTL
Sterlite Grid 4 Limited

12. Purchase of equity shares of NER
Sterlive Gid 4 Limited

influence

Susidiary of Sponsor, Entity with sigiificant
mfluenee

Fusidiary ol Sponsor /ity with sipmficant
influence

[E R




INDIA GRI TRUST
Nates to Financial Statements for the year eoded 31 March 2021

Relation 202021 20149-20

13, Recelved | of liabilitles
Sterlite Power Tyasmissinn Limited Sponsor and Froject Manager /Eatity with e 1806
sigmiicant inflvence

14, Earn Out Expenses
Sterlive Poswer Grid Ventures Limited® Spenser il Projeot Manager /By with FI6a.62 -
signilicant miluence
15, Iwsue af unit capital
Stevlite Power Grid Ventures Limited” Spansor and Project Manager /Entity with - 1L41204
significant influence

Esoteric 1, Entity with significant influence over the Trust - 2300.13

16. Distribution to unit holders

Sterlite Power Grid Yentures Limited* Sponsor and Froject Manager [oh Y6832
Indigrid lnvestmient Mariagers Liniled {Tormerly Stertite Investment Managers Litulted) [ovestreesnt psimager of bndiGedd 2.08 -

Esterie 11 Pte, Lad ity with significant mifluence sver the Trust LAat03 LZ03.H65
Fravin Agarwal Birector of Sponger - X
Pratil Agarwal Director of Spoasor and hvestment Manager 239 A4l
[rsh Shaly Whole time diveetor of Investment Marager 1z 12
Swapnil Patil Company Secrelary of lnvestment Manager o3 s

Sonakshi Agarveal Relative of divectar 19 018
froti Agarwenl Relative of director 025 Wz
Sujata Asthana Relative of divector LO1 067
Arun Todarwal [Hrector al Sponser won (X1
Ao B, Namsyanaswininy Dipector of Sponser k19 015
Mala Tedarwal Relative of director (LX) -

17. Trustee fee
Axls Trustee Services Limited (ATS]) Trustee 301 236

1#. Legal and professional services talien
Cyril Amarchard Mangaldas Firmin wehich divector of sponsor b

artner TR H] 2iebd

€} The outstanding balances of related parties are ss follows:

{15 in Million}

Particulars 31 March 2021 41 March 2020

Unsecuped loan receivable Do sobsidiaries LIL36)590 TLaT441
Iterest receivable from subsidiaries 51830 2ULaE
Nan-Convertible Debentures of subsidiary {including sccrued interest on EIR) 64833 2300
Investment In equity shares of subsidiary (excluding provision for impairment) 3W133.72 1700827
0y My convertilble ved prefes shares L0y L0180
Payalile tnwards project acquired L7oea4 LA92.00
Pagable wowards lepal and professional services E 5.18

Details in respect of related party transactions involving acquisition of InvIT assets as required by Para £.4(b}Hiv) of Seetion A of Anncxure A to SEBI Circular dated 20 October 2006 are as follows:
For the year ended 31 March 2021:

[A) S

'y of the valuation reports {issued by the independent valuerappeinted under the InvIT Hepu lations);
{15 in million

Parth 3 NER GPTL
Enterprise value 51,175 11630

Method of valustion Diseounted Cash Flow

Discounting rate (WALL):

T.0n%

(B} Material conditions ar obligations in relition to the transactions:

Acanisition of G Palwal Trausiission Limited (GETL);

Prarsuant tn the share purchase agreements dated August 28, 2020 [“SPA") sxecuted amnng Sterlite Power Grid Ventures Limited®, Sterlite Grid 4 Limited, Axis Trustee Seivices Limited, ndigrid Thvestment Minsigers
Linmitedd (i v Sterlite Tnve: . Lk} ane Guy vamsmission Limited {GPTL) foracquisition of equity stake in GITL Idigrid has aceuiied 49% of paid wp eguite capltal of GETL with offeey
fonnt Algust 26, 2020,

Under the Agreeents, the Trust has the following rights:

A Right te nominate the majority of the divectors on the Beard of Directors of GPTL.

I The Selling Shareholders are requived Lo vote acenrding it AGM/EGM or any other meeting of shavebolders of GRTL i a manner & bl for the | of IpdiaGrid Trast
¢ frrevocabile and wicamdiGonal mght toacquire the ramaing £ 5 Ee ] Lhe eguany stalie ol GPTL AL a later diate {on expiry al the respective fatony shareholding period).

d. Pledge e the romaining 51% equity stake in GPTL, of which 2% is pledged to lenders of GFTL,

. Non-dispesal undertaling from the Selling Sharcholders for the remaining 5 1% equity stake in GPTL.

The acquisitlon of equity shares of GPTL was financed by money raised through Qualified Instlitional Placement (QIF) of Rs. 25,140 nullion by diGrid. No fees or commission were received /o be received by any
assneiate of the refated party in relation to the tsnsactinn,

Pursuant o the shave purchise apreements dited 05 March 2021 ["5PA"} executed smong Stechite Power Transmission Limi
(Fermerly Sterlite Investment Managers Linted | and NEIL I Transmission Limted (HER for acquisition of couity stalo m NE
As ol 31 Blareh 2021, the Trust has paie additional conside

Sterfite Grid 4 Limited, Axks Tristee Services Limited, Indigrid Tnvestiment Mamagers Limited
< Ineligried has acquaved $9% of pard wpequity captal of HER with eifect fran 25 March 202 L
atien equivalent te 25% of the tntal comsdderation which wonld be adjusted obs payable lor dcquisition ol 25% of equly stk

Hndler the Agreements, the Trust has the following rights:

i Bight t netinate the majoriey of the directors on the Buard of Directors of NER

b, The Sellng Shareholders are equired to vote according i AGM/EGM ar any ather meeting of shareholdars of NER in a4 manner rvairable e the interests of Tndiatinid Trust.
. rrevacable and uncomditional pight L acguire the vemaining %1% of the equity stake of NER ata later date |on expiry of the respretive mandatory shirehelding period),

o, Pledpe o the remmining 51% eq stalue in MEIL

e, Non-disposal undertaking from the Selling Sharehol ders for the rematning 51% wquity stake in NER.

The pegquistion of equity shares of NER wis financed by money vinsed threngh Qualitied Inslubonal Placerment [QIP) ot R, 25,
of the refated parly in relation to the transaction.

by by Inditived, Mo fews or commigsion were received flo be received by any associate
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For the year ended 31 March 2020;

[A} Summary of the valuation reports {issuei by the independent viluer nppointed under the InvIT Regulations):

Purticulars NTL OGPTL

Enterprise value 41,66 12h40 11,355
Kethod of vialwation Mscounted Cash Flow

Digvounting rate (WACE): 8.12%) 5429 8779

(B} Misterial conditions or ohligations in relation Lo the trnsactions:

1

As 55 XXX Transmis ed (NTI Lo 3 5 it I
Pursuant to the shave purchase agreements dated April 30, 2019 (“SPA") executed among Sterlite Fower Gri
Investinent Managers Limited), Indigrid 1 Limited (ermerly kngwn as Stedite Grid 2 Livsied) and NRSS XXX T
1 Limited (fornserty knowo as Sterlile Gild 2 Limited) which is the olding company of NTL,

: St i a1l
Amited®, Axis Trustee Services Limited, ndigrid Investment M pes Limited {formerdy Sterlile
Limilted for acquisition of equity stake ln NTL. The Trust has acquired 100% af eyuity in Indigeid

The acqisitlon of MISS {({through acquisition of vquity shares of Indigrid 1 Limited (latmerly knovin as Sterlite Grid 2 Limited)) and was linaneed by mianey faised through Qualified Institutional Placetmont (1] of Rs.
25,140 million by [aditied. No fees or commissian were received/to e received by any associate of the related party in relation to the transaction.,

£ nisitinn of Od 15 et Phage-| s L (LILEN A LS Il IR i 15 { L it i
Prrsuant (o the shave purchase sgroements dated April 30, 2009 s amended ol Jurie 2H, 2010 {TEPAY) executod among Sterlite Fower Grid Ventures Limited®, Axls Trastes Servives Liwmited, indigrid tnvestment Managess
ol (formerly Steclite Investunent Managers ted ), ndigeid 2 Limited (formerly luwwn s Steclite Grid 3 Lin ted) and Odisha o Phase-|1 Tr. i Limited for acquisttion of equity stake In 06T The

Trust has acquived 100% of equity in Indlarid 2 Limited {formerly knoven as Stevlite Grid 3 Limiled) which is the holding company of OGFTL

The acquisition of CGPTL {{through acquisition of shares of Indigrid 2 Limited (formerly known as Sterlite Grid 3 Limited)) and was financed by money raised through Qualified stitutional Placement {Q11] of Rs, 25,140
willlon by Inditrid, No tees or commission were received /to be received Iy any associate of e refated party i relation t te transaction,

uisit - 3 i (] imited i
Pursuant to the sliare purcl precuents dated March 23, 2020 {"SPA”) executed amung Sterite Power Grid Ventures Limieed ' s Trustee Sw
Investment Minagers Limited), Sterlite Power Fransmission Limited and East-North Interco rection Limited (ENICLT) for aequisition of coulty stake
with elfect from March 24, 2020 and acquired remaining 51% equity stalee i ERICL on May 26, 2020,

Lmmitel, Indigrld lnvestwent Masssgers Limited {furmely Sterlite
ENICL. The Trust acquived 49% of paid up equity capital of ENICL

The aequisition of equity shares of ENICL was foanced by money raised thrawgh Qualified Institutional Mlacement (QIP) of Ks. 25,140 million by IndiGrid, Mo fees or commission were received Mo be received by any
asseciate of tie related party do relation te the tansaction,

! Sterlite Power Lrid Ventures Limited |“SPGVL) has been merged with Sterdite Power Transmission Linited {SPEL),

Note 25: Capital and uther Conpnitinents
(3] The Trast bas entered [nte o Framework agrecment on 30 April 2009 witl Stertite Grid Ventures iited {SPGYL')" for ac |ubsition of Kirgone 1 Limited {KTI).

(B} The Trust has entered into a Share Parchase agreement on 18 Decomber 2020 with FRY Solar Holdings X1EV (*FRV) for acquisition of 10096 equity share capital of FRY Andhira Pradesh Sskar Farme-1 Pot Lid ('FRVAPLY)
and FRV [olla Sabar Parle 1 Put Lud {(FRVIPLY,

! Steglite Power Grid Ventures Limited (

VL) has bewn merged with Sterlite Power Teansmission Limited (5l

Note 26: Contingent liahility
e Trwst las s comtingunt [

A e pupated,

Note 27: Segnient reporting
The Trust's activities comprise of owning and i ingin ission 5PV to cash Mows for distribution W unithalders, Based on the Ui
Talls wiathin a single operating segment and accordingly the disclosures of Ind A5 - 108 lave not separately heen given.

principles givenin nd AS- 108 "Operating Segments”, this activiy

Note 26 Financial risk management ohjectives and policies
The Trust's principal financlal liahilitics comprise of horrowings and ether financial labilities. The main purpose of these fnanclal labilitios is t fnance the Trust's uperations. The Trust’s principal Nnancial assots include
Investments, loans, cash and bank Dalances and other lnancial assets that derive directly from s operations,

The Trust may be exposed te marker risl, eredit sk and ligucitty sk, The lnvestment Manager aversees e management of these risks, Al der
teunis hat have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Trosts policy tat no Weading in derivatives for speculative purposes m.
wanaging each of these visks, which are summarksed belaw,

e actiaties fnr vislk manapement purpasss are carried aul by specialist
s he wmdertaben The managemont reviews and agrees policies fint

The Risk Managenient policies of the
palicies s sysiems ave reviewed regy

stareestablished tidenuly i analvse the risks Giced by the Trust, to set appropriate dstclimis and contvols sl w moniter risks and adborence 1o limits, st nEigement
rly b reflect chumges o et conditions and the Trost's actviies,

has overall responsibility for the Dlis) and oversight of e Trust's visk management framewari.

{A) Murket risk
Matrleet vk is the visle that the Gievalue of futire cash Qows ofa lnancal instroment will Sucie beease af chanpus et prices. Marked risk comprises tee 1ypes of visl interest tte sk, currency risk and other
price risk such s equity price risk, Financial instruments affected by market rist inchude loans and borrowings and investments.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate vigh is the risk Uhat the fair valie o fture cash Mows of a financial instrument will Mrciuate because of clanges in market interest rates The Trist's borrowings areat fived rate, hence the Trust 15 Aot exposed
Lo Bnterest rate risk.

Forelgn currency risk
Foreign currvency risk is the sk that the fair value or futire sash flows of an cxpassre will Muetuate because of ch
2020 and 31 March 2020,

s foreign exchange vates, The Trst did not have aiy exposue i foreign currency a5 at 21 March

Equity price risk
The Trust’s mvestments in equ ity shares of subsidiaries are susceptible to market price (isk arising from uncectaintics about future valies of those investments. Repores an die equity portfalio are submitted to Uhe senior
management ona regular basis, The Boavd of Direclors of the Investment Manager roviews and approves all equity investment de
Authe reporting date, the exposure Lo cquity myestments in subshliaey 4L carrying vilue was K 3719307 million {31 March 2020
e valie measurement are disclosed i Note 234,




INDIA GRIN TRUST
Netes to Financial Statements for the year cnded 31 March 2021

(0 Credit risk
Crualit plsk b5 the risk that 3 counterparty will notmeet its obligations under a financial Instiment or customer contract, leading to a fnancial loss, The Teust is exposed o oredit risk from Its investing activities including
loans tn subsidiares, deposits wath banks and other linancial instruments As a0 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the crodit risk is considerod low Since substantial transactions of the Trast ave with a5 subsidanies,

i L rlslo Ut Uie Trast may enconnter difliculty i sireeting s presentand Mutere obligations associaied wil g eatsh or another financial assev
The Trust's ohjective 1s to, atall imes, maintain optmum levels of Iiquidity to meet 1t cash and collateral obhgatians. The Trust quires funds both for short wrm eperational needs as well as for Iong term investment

¢ in transmission projects, The Trust closely monitors jts lquistity position and deploys a robust cash monagement system. [Laims to minimbse tiese Tisks by genorating sullichent eash Boaws from e current
waddition to the available cash and cash ansel Ligguil will provide liquidity.

et w the basis of expiected maturity dites of the Gancial liabilities. The other il lisablitles e with short teom darations, The tible below sumenag jses the mrEtority profile of the Trssts

1l on contracual undtscounted payments:

1|
financial liakilities bi

Particulars Payabile on demand Lessthan 3 months 3 months to 1to 5 years More thun 5 years

12 months
31 March 2021
Borrowings - - - +ALES WITETE 104817.27
Other linancial labilities (excluding derivative instruments) - G401 3.254.04 - - 40805
Tatal = 4401 3,254.04 A,H44.55 93172.72 108216532
Particulars
31 Mareh 2020
Horrowings - - - 2268216 16.800.05 A AHE 2L
Uther tinaneial Labilities (exchading derivative insteuments) - 114,35 LHUT7.00 = = ERILT K]
Total - 193,33 1.897.00 2268216 16,800.05 4157154

Note 249: Capital management
Far the purpose of the Trust's capital management, capital includes issued unit e pitaland all other reserves attributable to the unit helders of the Trust e primary objective of the Trusts eapital management is to ensire
thatl it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital rtlos in order to support its business and maximise unit helder value.

The Trust manages its capital steveture and makes adjustments it in ight of changes in coonvitic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants To maintin or adjust the capital structure, the Trost may
st e rlestribution to wnithalders (subject to the provisions of LT vogulations which rog disteibiitinn of at least 0% of the net disteibutable cash Tows of tie Trast to wme halders), retarn capital to unitholders o
issue new wnits, The Trust monitars capital using.a gearing tatio, which is net debt divided by total ciapital plus net debt. The Trusts policy is ta leep the praring vatio optnwm The Trostiscludes within net deby, interest
biearing lojns and borrowings and ether payalles casliand casl equivalents, other bank balances and sharl term investiments,

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Rs. in million Rs. in millio
Doy onwings 10401727 I%apz21
Tride payables X =
Gther fimaneial liabalies AL A 209033
Lasz: Cashy and cish equivalents, other bank bal and short wem i {14.194.58) [2.927.73)
Netdebi (A) B4020,74 Jh.aa4 R
Unit capital 53,145.69 53, 145.69
Uther equity LYG L3 (EFA72)
Toetal eapital {B) 55,096.72 51,431,97
Capital and net debt {[€] = (A) + (B]} 1,49, 117.46 HO076.74
Gearing ratie [T/ [A) 63 a3

Mo chonges were made I Ure objectives, policies or processes for anaging capital during the yeavs ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,

Naote 30: Subsequent event
1. 0n 27 May 2021 the Board of directors af the Investment Manager approved i distribution of Rs. 3,00 per wnit for the period 1 Jamusary 202140 31 Marel 2021t be paid onor before 15 days from the date of dechration.

2. The Trust has offered wn fssue of upto 116,695,404 units of Il Grid Trusy (Indigrid s such units, e "units™), lor cash al o price of 3 110,00 [EH [the “iaane price”], agpregiting o T 12,836.49 million® w e
eligible ntholbders {as defined (o e Letter of (T} ay ights bass an dhe st of ape ot for every five ots (each lot comprising 170 L units) held by them on the record date Treing 30 March 2021 (e “ls2he™) 11
seeoidinee with the Securities and Exclange Doard of ldia {nfrast velurn lovestment Trusty Regulations, 014 including the vules, civeulars and guidetines issued thereunder, including the SEBI Rights Jssue Guidelines
[the "InvIT Regulitions™). The issue openod on 06 April 2021 and closed on 13 April 2021,

3 Thee Triksthas Gled Do Shell Prospectus (DS an 08 April 2021 for the pablic issue Iy et beackicn Goriel Trusl fUhue "Teasst™) of securcd, raved, lsted, redesmable non-convertible debt seciivities ul Face value of T 1000

each ("NCDs") forae amount aggregating upto 3 1,000 crore (e “Shelf Limit"h The issue is being miade tothe provisiens of thie "Guidelines for Issusnco of Febt Securities by Real Estate mvestment Trusts (REIT)
and Infeastrictore Investinent Trasts (InviTs)" dated 13 April 2008 issned by the Securites and Exehange Board of ldin read witl the Seeuritics and Exchan g Board ol india (Isswe and Listing of Bebt Securitios)
Regulations, 2008, ogether with any amendments, eirculars and guidelines issued thereumler (the “SEBE ILDS Regulations"} and the itiesand Exchange Hoard of India (Infrastructure Dvestment Trusts) Regulations,
20714, together with any d creulars and guidelines lssued L dey {the "l T Begalations")L The issue apened on 28 Apil 2021 and closed on 20 Apid 2021,
e
——
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INDIA GRID TRUST
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Note 3 1: lmpact of COVID-19

Trring the year, the outheeal: of the coronavivus disease of 20009 ('COVIT-197 s|read thraupghont
pamclemic curve in T i was declining towands Uie end of 2020 bt has res

e warliband hecame a global pandemic, The pandemic teggeved 4 significant downturn plobally, imelwdeng i fodia, The
ek agam from March 2021,

The management has evaluated the wupact of COVID 1% pandemic an thie Trust The Trust reseives income mainly in the form of interestincame an loans glven W subsidiries which ave engaged in the constrisction and

& i e ol por b st lines (0 consbruston sl eperation & ma el powwer L issdun Heves s substtions (power G i i are governed by Sective 63 of The
Electiieity Act 2003 where i as pee the i Service Agreements {'TSAST Larill revenue is acerued based on lak of power iy ion mfrasirictire. Further, the Government of Indi bas declared power
Lransmigsion as an essential seevice theretore the subsidiaries is able (o ensare availabil Ly ol pariver dsston infrastractere o carry out mEnRe e 3 s during the leck down period,

The management believes that as the taril revenues are linked to irrespective of the g of power itted through the power transinission infrastructure and considering the Point of Connection
[T haniisim the il of dlection of i i chacges yeceivalies as of 31 Miseh 2021 Ls misi Further, te dues notsee any visks i Uke Trusts ability to continue as a peing consenn
mecting its Habilities as and when they 11 due, The management will continue e mioniter and assess impact of cconomic conditions arising due w COVID 19, The impact of COVID 149 may differ fromi thist expected at the
e of approval of these standalone financial statements,

As per our report of even date

For SRBC & COLLP Forand on behalfof the Board of Directors af
Chartered Accountants Indigrid Investment Mapagers Limited [formerly Sterlite lnvestment Managers Limited)
Firm Registration No, 324982E/E300003 {8 Investment Manager of India Grid Trust)
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per Hirgefa Glnwiila rsh Shah <7 Bwa ::I'llll Patil Iyotl Kuiar Agarwial
Partner CEO & Whale Time Birector LCompany Secretary Chicf Finamcial Officer
Membership Number : 111757 DIN: 02496122 Menhership Mumber 24861
Flace: P Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai Ilvce  Mumbai
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Unit holders of India Grid Trust

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of India Grid Trust (the “InvIT™),
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Unit Holders’ Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, the Statement of Net Assets at fair value as at March
31, 2021, the Statement of Total Returns at fair value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows
(‘NDCFs’} of the InvIT for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes(“the standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended including any
guidelines and circulars issued thereunder (the “InvIT Regulations™) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the
extent not inconsistent with InvIT regulations, of the state of affairs of the InvIT as at March 31, 2021 ,
its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash movements and its movement of the unit
holders’ funds for the year ended March 31, 2021, its net assets at fair value as at March 31, 2021, its
total returns at fair value and the net distributable cash flows of the InvIT for the year ended March 31,
2021.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the InvIT in accordance with the
"Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the InvIT Regulations and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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d Fleor, Koliv

C4 COLLP a Limted Labigy B
Regd Qe 22, Camac Streel




Chartered Accountanis

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the standalone financial statements section of our report. including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying standalone financial statements.

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key aundit matter

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and loans siven to subsidiaries
(as described in notes 4,5,6 and 22 of the standalone financial statements)

Our audit procedures included, among others, the
following:

The InvIT has significant investments in
subsidiaries and has granted loans to its

subsidiaries amounting to Rs.155,522
million as at March 31, 2021. The value
of investments and loans in aggregate
comprise 95% of total assets in the
Balance Sheet.

The subsidiaries are in the business of
owning and maintaining transmission
assets and  have entered into
Transmission  Services  Agreement
("TSA") with Long Term Transmission
Customers ("LTTC").

At each reporting period end,
management assesses the existence of
impairment indicators of investments in
subsidiaries and loans given to
subsidiaries. In case of existence of
impairment indicators. the investment
and loan balances are subjected to
impairment test, where the fair value of
the subsidiary is compared with the value
of investments and loans given to such
subsidiaries.

The processes and methodologies for
assessing and determining the fair value
of the subsidiary is based on complex
assumptions, that by their nature imply
the use of the management’s judgment, in
particular with reference to identification
of forecast of future cash flows relating to
the period covered by the respective

We obtained an understanding of the InvIT’s process
on assessment of impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and loans to subsidiaries and the
assumptions used by the management, including
design and implementation of controls, validation of
management review controls. We have tested the
operating effectiveness of these controls.

We obtained and read the valuation report of the
InvIT’s independent valuation expert, and assessed
the expert’s competence, capability and objectivity.

We evaluated the independent valuation expert’s
methodology, assumptions and estimates used in the
calculations.

We tested on sample basis that the tariff revenues
considered in the respective valuation models are in
agreement with TSAs / tariff orders.

We tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy and
validity of the data used in the calculations.

In performing the above procedures, we involved
valuation specialists to perform an independent
review of methodology and key assumptions used in
the valuation.

We read and assessed the disclosures included in the
notes to the standalone financial statements.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

subsidiary’s transmission license, debt
equity ratio, cost of debt, cost of equity,
residual value, etc.

Considering the judgment involved in
determination of fair values due to
inherent uncertainty and complexity of
the assumptions used in determination of
fair values, this is considered as a key
audit matter.

Classification of unit holders’ funds as equity

(as described in Note 22 of the standalone financial Statements)

The InvIT is required to distribute to
Unitholders not less than ninety percent
of its net distributable cash flows for each
financial year. Accordingly, a portion of
the unitholders® funds contains a
contractual obligation of the Trust to pay
to 1ts Unitholders cash distributions. The
Unitholders’ funds could therefore have
been classified as compound financial
instrument which contains both equity
and liability components in accordance
with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments:
Presentation. However, in accordance
with SEBI Circulars No.
CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated October
20,2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016
dated November 29, 2016 ("SEBI
Circulars") issued under the InvIT
Regulations, the unitholders’ funds have
been classified as equity in order to
comply with the mandatory requirements
of Section H of Annexure A to the SEBI
Circular dated October 20, 2016 dealing
with the minimum disclosures for key
financial statements.

Considering the judgment required for
classification of unit holders® funds as
equity and liability, this is considered as
a key audit matter.

|

Qur audit procedures included, among others:

We obtained and read the requirements for
classification of financial liability and equity under
Ind AS 32 and evaluated the provisions of SEBI
Circulars for classification/presentation of unit
holders funds in the financial statements of an
Infrastructure Investment Trust.

We read and assessed the disclosures included in the
standalone financial statements for compliance with
the relevant requirements of InvIT regulations.
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Key audit matters

‘ How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Disclosures relating to Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total Returns

at Fair Value as per InvIT regulations

(as described in Note 22 of the standalone financial stutements)

The InIT is required to disclose
Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and
Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value
pursuant to SEBI circulars issued under
the InvIT regulations which requires fair
valuation of the assets. Such fair
valuation has been carried out by the
independent valuer appointed by the
InvIT.

For the purpose of the above, fair value is
determined by  forecasting  and
discounting future cash flows.

The processes and methodologies for
assessing and determining the fair value
is based on complex assumptions, that by
their nature 1mply the use of the
management’s judgment, in particular
with reference to identification of
forecast of future cash flows relating to
the period covered by the respective
subsidiary’s transmission license, debt
equity ratio, cost of debt, cost of equity,
residual value, etc.

Considering the judgment involved in
determination of fair values due to
inherent uncertainty and complexity of
the assumptions used in determination of
fair values, this is considered as a key
audit matter.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the
following:

We read the requirements of InvIT regulations for
disclosures relating to Statement of Net Assets at
Fair Value and Statement of Total Returns at Fair
Value.

We discussed with the management and obtained an
understating of the InvIT’s policy on the assessment
of fair value and the assumptions used by the
management, including design and implementation
of controls, validation of management review
controls. We have tested the operating effectiveness
of these controls.

We obtained understating of the InvIT’s process for
preparation statement of Net Assets at Fair Value
and Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value as per
InvIT regulations and the assumption used by the
management, including design and implementation
of controls, validation of management review
controls. We have tested the operating effectiveness
of these controls.

We obtained and read the valuation report of the
InvIT"s independent valuation expert, and assessed
the expert’s competence, capability and objectivity.

We evaluated independent wvaluation expert’s
methodology, assumptions and estimates used in the
calculations.

We tested on sample basis that the tariff revenues
considered in the respective valuation models are in
agreement with TSAs / tariff orders.

We tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy and
validity of the data used in the calculations.
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

® In performing the above procedures. we used
valuation specialists to perform an independent
review of methodology and key assumptions used in
the valuation.

»  Weread and assessed the disclosures included in the
notes to the standalone financial statements.

Other Information

The Management of Indigrid Investment Managers Limited (formerly known as Sterlite Investment
Managers Limited) (the “Investment Manager™) is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Management of the Investment Manager (the Management’) is responsible for the preparation of
these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position as at March
31,2021, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and the movement
of the unit holders’ funds for the year ended March 31, 2021 , the net assets at fair value as at March 31,
2021, the total returns at fair value of the InvIT and the net distributable cash flows of the InvIT for the
year ending March 31, 2021 in accordance with the requirements of the InvIT regulations; Indian
Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not
inconsistent with InvIT regulations. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate controls for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the ability
of the InvIT to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the InvIT
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management is also responsible for overseeing the InvIT’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the InvIT’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the InviT’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the InvIT to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2021 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are in agreement with the books of account;

(c) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) and/or any addendum thereto as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, to the extent not inconsistent with InvIT
Regulations.

For SRBC & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

- a3l
Wbz
per Huzefa Ginwala
Partner
Membership Number: 111757 #
UDIN:2N\ 7 §FARRACT 26 22-
Place of Signature: Pune
Date: May 27, 2021




INIHA GRIB TRUST
CONSOUIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

(Al amounts in Rs. miillion unless atherwise stated)

Notes 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
R, in il
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Pregierty, plant and cquipment K 16389829 163,16
Capital work-fn-progress 4 9700 -
Fimeial assels
i Other financial assels o 2HG6,14 G506
Dther nomcurrent assets 7 EERES] IBLIH
16718487 LUL555.36
HEassels
a5615
rade recepvables i3 E9TRATN 2ARIGS
Vo Civshismd cushy equivalenis ok 20,066,29 AORHAL
i Banl Balances other than (i) above e 1771481 L299.74
1. Loans to employee 5 (LHG %
v Other Ninancial assets i 200022 LIHzed
Other curvent assets 7 2571 23572
3316961 4364481
Total assets 2,00,354.50 1,17,920.19
EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
Equity
Uit e prinal 11 S 14569 53.145.00
ither cyuity 12
Herained earnings/{accumulared defici) (3700 [Z.069.44)
ther reserves
Sell insurance Reserve SEOT -
Equity attributable w Nonecontialling i 168102 =
Total unitholders’ equity AR8504.04 5048625
Non-current liabilitles
Fiancial linkilitics
1 Borpmiing: 13 fd 637200
Emplovee Benetic Ubllpations i &
Dreferped L Dalalities [net) i [HIENTY
1,36,990,04 63,230,06
Current liabilities
Fssncial abiliies
i Teade payalles 14
an Tonal outstanding dues ol miveo cnterprises and small coterpriscs 10532
b Tatal vutsanding dues of cresditors viher Ban mivie enterprises and small ciberpriscs 427.5%
i Ather finascial liah 5 15 AnlTon
Ernployee Henelin Ulligstony i -
b curvent Habilitios 7 24027
Current tax liability i Al
14.859.52 4, 19488
Tatal Habilities 15184950 H7A33.94
Total equity and liabilities 2,00,35-850 17,920,149
ificint avcounting polteies five 3

Suniviny of sip

“The sccompanying noles are an integral parl of Uhe Miancial statements,
As per our veport of even date

For and an behalt of the Doard of
digrid lnve: gers Lin

For SROC&COLLP
Clartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No. 224982 E/E300003

Membership Namber - 111757
Fliwe
Tate: 2

7 May 2021

pe [

ectol's of
Led {formerly Sterlite nvestivent Mamnagers Limited)

(s Investment Manager of india Grid Trust)

Swwupnil Patil

|rany Seorelary
Buembaership Nuber ; 2861
Plase ; Ml

Thate 127 May 2021

) e o]
Nk

Iyotl Kemar Agarwal
Chiet Finaeial ey




INDUEA GRIY TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
Allmmownts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Notes 31 Mach 2021 31 March 2020
il Rs.
INCOME
Bevenue from contracts wi LS M 16,769.19 1242713
Fncome fron investment nmotsal Tunds 12591 0.9
Iterest inpome on investment in fixed leposie 13577 a0
(Hher finance i ' [EAG3 0dz
(Hher income i W3.03 65,51
Tatal inconee (1) 17.141.53 12,705.94
Lerpenses 22 140,74 1.67
nfrastructice maintenanee charges 300,79 A4iae
Legal and professional fees 145,34 15745
Annual listing fee 618 w30
Hating foo Tl JHeb
Valuation expenses 405 AHY
Trustee fee 148 60
I'ayinent Lo auditors
- SLatuiary aadit fees B Wind
= T it fees 214
= Other services {inchding certil 737 A
(thor expenses 23 L7220t G6HAZ0
Deprecintion expense 3 A3048T d101.12
Fimanee costs 24 6HGLYG 4,153,538
Impairmnent/ (reversal af impaicmenty of property, plint and equipment and service concessun recenalle 17511 (456.96)
Total expenses (1} 134, 786.67 77607
Hoegulatry Deferal Tncome (el note a0 (111 {1551}
Prafit hefore tax (1-11-11] BAZ0L37 ANASHT
Tux expense
Lurrent Ly 1 4945 56.%0
Deforsed Ly b [
Ineome L or earlion yeurs L5l -
Tax expense ThaR {57.33)
Profit for the year 3344.09 5,057.20
Dther comprehensive income
eotne b be reckiss vy profit er logs in sebsequent periods =
ten et piat o e pe Jasaitiod o profic on loss i sulsegquent peg jods {3062}
Other compreliensive income for the year [3.62) =
Total comprehensive income fo the year 3.347.71 557,20
—a i,
Profit for the year 334404 S0s7.210
Arributable te:
et hald 334700 ART.20
Nem-comlrolling nneresty a0 -
Other comprehensive income for the year [d.62) &
Arlrilitble i
Uit helders [i.68) -
Not-comtrolling nterests [0 -
Total comprehensive income for the year 334771 505720
Abtrifutithle e
Uit hobilers 333076 et
Nonsconteelling imterests 745 -
Earnings per unit
Tasic and difuted 25 LT 1%
Coimpueted e Uhe Batsis of profit Tor the vear (s}
Suemaey of signilicant sceounting pulicies 2

“The accompanyiing notes are an integreal part of the financial statenents,

A per oy report of even date

ForSRECACOLLP
Charterod Accountants
Firm Replstration No, 32400287 000003

il Investme
1o avestment [

Manager:
angeer of Indis Grid Tro

1. dubet .

e Mikeela Gin
Tartner
Memibership Number: 111757
Plave ; Pune

Pt £ 27 May 2021

D & Whole Time Director
BRI RT VR

il on hehalt of the Board of Divectors of
Limited (formerly Steclite Investment Manapers Limited)

= Swapnil Patil
Lompany Secietan
Membership Nomber 24561
e Murnisai
late : 27 May 2021

Tyarth Kunnar Agarwal
Chivl Financeal ilicer

Place : Mumbai
Phnne: 27 May 2021




INDIA GRID TRUST
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS' EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
{Altamounts in Rs. million unjess otherwise stated)

A Unit capital
Hos. in millinn Rs. in million
Balance as at 01 April 201% PR AMER000
Changes in unit capital during the year (refer note 11) 29969 2814048
Fssue expenses (refer note 11] - {47470
Balance asat 31 March 2020 583.49 54,145.69
{hanges in unit capital during the year - -
Tssle expenses - -
Bulance asat 31 March 2021 S83.49 53,145.69
B. Other equity [Rs. in million)
Attriutabile to unitholders Non-controlling Total other equity
Other comprehensive | Retained earnings; | Self Insurance Reserve Inkerest
ncome Accunrulated deficit
Asat 01 April Z019 - (i.613.89) = - {1,613.649)
Profit lor the year - RORT.20 - - S057.20
Lass: | ibution during the year {refer note beluw | - {6,002.75) - & (6,102.75)|
Tatal comprehensive income - {1,045.55) - - {1L,B4555)
Asat 31 March 2020 - (2,659.44) - - (2.659.44)
Auldd: Aequigiten of subsidiaoy - - GH.OT7 L7307 1L,731.14
Profitfor the year - 333709 - Tan 334409
Clier comprehensive income St . - (94 .02
Total comprehensive income 260 133709 S8.07 LeBRL0E 5.07H485
Fesisz Disteibution darmg the yesr {refer pote bejow | - [7AHd117) - (a7
Asat il March 2021 ok (mAfL52) 5807 L6810 {1.640.75])

Noes
TThe ddistrabute
wliich will Be

elates v the st bt
tter 31 March 2021,

g b diancral yesn abong with e distihuion vedated B e st quartor of FY 200920 and dees ot inchide tie distethution relating to e last guarter ol BY 2020-21

The distributions made by ditivid ta its unitholders are based an e Net Bistributable Cash Flows (NDUE) of IndiGrid under the tnvl Reaulatisns and e et of the same includes repayment of eapital as well

As per our report of even date

Far SROC & COLL Forand an behaifof the Buard of Dircctors of
At Dligried lvestment Managers Lindted (formerly Sterlite lnvestment Managers Limited)
AL4YRLESEAODN0T fas Investment Manager of India Grid Trust)

r-

o
Aapd
5 T i
- = .

per Huxeta Ginwala - Swapsil Patil Jyoti Kumar Agarwal
e ™ Company Seergtry Thiet Pivania| Officer
Membeyship Mupber - 111757 Membership Number ; 294061
Place : Pune Flace : Mumbai Phace s Mumlbai
Bate - 27 May 2021 Thane s 27 May 2021 bt - 27 Blay 2021 Date + 27 My 2021




INTHA GRID TRUST
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
(All amounts in Rs. millon unless atherwise stated)

31 March 2021

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit/ (loss) as per stitement of profit and loss
Adjustment for taxation
Profit/ {Loss) before tax

Non-cash adjustment o reconcile profit befere 1y wnet cash fows
Depreciation exponses
Impairment f{reversal of lapairment] of Property Plant & Equipment and service concession
Forelpn exchange loss on borrowing

Finance cost

Income from investiment b mulual funds

Inlerest income on imvestment tn fixed doposits

Interest on others

Operating profit before working eapital changes

Movements in warking capital :
- trade payahles

= other current financial abi
- other current liabilities

- trade recelvables

= oLher non-current finckal assel
= other nonscurrent assel

= other current financial asset

= other clrrent assets

5

Change inworking capital

Cash penevated from operations

Divect taxes paid (net of relunds)

Net cash Dow from operating activities {A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Furchase of property plant & cquipment [inelugding capital work-in-progress and capital advances)
Furchase of servics concosslon receivable of subsidiary

Acquisition ol ether assets (net ol ather labilities)

Acquizition of mutwal fod investments

Interest ingome va investinent in fxed deposits

Tcome Teant lvestment in matieal funds

Interest op others

Proceeds froo mutual funds {net]

Iwvestment in fixed deposits {net)

Net cash low from /{used) in investing acti

€. Cash flow from financing activities
Praceeds from issue of unit capital
Uinit Issue expense incurred

Froceeds of long term boprowings

eilb of Jung term borrowings

R
Acquisition of borrowings

Favient af upfeont (ees of long tevm borrowings
Finance costs

Iayment of distributions w unitiolders

Net cash flow used in Gnancing activities {C)
Net increase / (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ G}
Cash and cash equivalents as al beginning of year

Casleand cash quivalents as al year end

31 March 2020

(B in tnillion) (B in million}
3,347.71 5.057.20
76.28 {67.33)
3.423.99 4,999,587
H304.85 310112
175.11 [456,96)
ldn GEH5
686495 4,090,553
{129.91) (199,89
(135.77} {1020
[1363) >
14,551.05 11,504.43
{151.3%) 408
HHZ.04 194.12
[ELRT (47 148)
156202 307
136.24 {5.82)
26,10 [10.72)
(HIT7.B1) 49,71
2729 (103}
2,034.30 (129.47)
1658541 1137496
21035 [125.42)
16,793.76 11,249,048
(54.455.51) (59,156.47)
{670.67) [774306)
= (2604.21]
135.64 A1.91
12941 T
13,63 -
& 2679593
(446,51 {1L260.08)
(58,971.86) {60,907.39)
25, 14044
. (37470
5453079 AREAESH
{15.764.01) 1273.491)
3BN07.08 ERGIE)
[266.54) [272.51)
{6,095,42) (4.823.19)

(7.05783) {6, 1L 16)
64,153,098 52,143.10
21,977.88 2,484.75

+nHA1 L6060
26,066.29 4,088.41




INIA GRID TRUST
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
(Al amounts in Bs. million unless otherwise stated)

valents:

31 March 2020
(Rs. in million

Balances with banls:

= (i current accounis 23.101.29 346787
= Depostt with seiginal maturity of fess than 3 munths 290500 620,54
Total cash and eash equivalents (refer note 9) 26,066.29 4,088.41

Recondiliation between opening sod closing bal Tor i arising from 0 Ing activities (inclading curcent maturities) -
Farticulurs Long term borrowings
(ineluding conrent
it rities)

01 Apritzo1g 26,172.27
sl o

- Interest (342319}
= Proveeds/ | repayments) I7300LT6
Foreign exchange loss ou borrowing 209,56
Loase lahility 5134
Accrug] BO9053
31 March 2020 G4,004,27
Cash Mow

= hntergst (6095.42)
- Procecds/ [ repaymuents) BL70LTE
Forelpn exehange loss on borrewing. a0
Lasase Habillty ARHT
Aversal D EGA1HG
31 March 2021 14663470

Summary of sigailicant seeounting policics

As por our report of even date

For SRAC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 324982 E/E300003

per Huzefa Ginwala

fariner

Memberslipg Nimber - 111757
IMace : Pune

Taate 27 May 20210

21

il an belalf nf the Board of Directors of
Indigrid Investment Managers Litnited (formerly Sterfite Investment Managers Lhnited)
(as Investment Manager of India Grid Trust)

. Jylots ;
‘Z-"_ ALSN -y e
s - - H .
J HarstiStah SwapnibEaril Jyoti Kumar Agarwal
{ 00 & Whele Time Birector = Company Secretary Chief Financial Oificer
a2 Beembhershipy Numbes - 24561
Place : Mumbai Vfaece - Mumbai Pace : Mumbal

Date: 37 May 2021 Date; 27 May 2021 Trane {37 May 2031




INDIA GRID TRUST

Notes to C Hdated Financial 5 for the year ended 31 March 2021

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SEBI CIRCULARS

[SEB] Circalar No, CIR/AMI/DE/L L4 /2006 dated 20 October 2006 and Mo, CHIMDREZLZT20 16 dated 29 November 2006 tssued snder the el T Regulations)

A STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE AS AT

TParticulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Book vilue Fair vitlue Bouk value varlug
A fissets £00354.50 237.186.21 1,17.920.19 12710052
B Liabilities {at book value} 1514950 LEL84L56 67 AT3O0 (R KRR
. Met Assets (A-R} AfG04.94 #%,33005 S048M25 S 005
T, Mumber of unils SREAS GHAAY SRdAn 58349
E NAV /D) 83,13 140,25 86,52 10226

Total assetsafter provision for impaiement e ivestnent i subsidiries determined based en Gair valeation. For the put pose of AV Computation we have considered [0 of the Bair valued assels and Habilities of PIRTCL
ancd NER [Eand the eltect of nan contralling interest of 26% af the i valued assets and labilities is not constdered to arvive st e computed KAV,

Project wise breakup of Balr value of assets as at [Rs, in millinn}
E’mird 31 March 2021 A1 March 20260
lihopal Dhube Transmission Company Limited 2090357 1078164
Jabalpur Transmission Company Limited Lo 3dnss 14,490,320
maheshvwaram Transmassion Linnted 598430 5346606
BAFP Transmission Company Limilod 429543 403567
Puralia % Kiavagpor Transmssion Company Limited Db H HI0L6T
Patran Transmizsion Company Limited Z022.1% 23800t
WRES XXIN Transmission Linited * 27503 45,382,670
Crelishi G iun PhisesE T seission Limited 15, 18H.55 1437115
East North tnierconnection Gompany Limited 1EHELED 1258101
Gurganns=alual Tramsmession Lmted i 1A HGHSGL -
Pharjjier 10T Transen Mrivate Lamted il AT2HT =
Parbatt Koldkam Transmission Company Limitedil 022637 -
NER I Transmission Limivedt 6769529 .
I 2,26,348,33 1,23.997.69
Assers (i Dindited) HHETHE G102
Tolal assels 2,57, 18621 127, 10052

"3t

ited] 1 wlincl s the Tobding comipany of NESS XXU0 Trmsoission Limited
iaisston Eimited (COGETL') om 04 Jume 2005 and 28 Juie 2019 respectively,

+Frust ad cyguived Indigiid 1 Blited (G ELY (Tornerly known as “Stelite Grid 2 Li
fte Gl 3 Lhmeltead” ) wdvich is the holding eompany of Generation Phase-11 Tra

L) ameed B iggeied 2 Lanited (HGZLE (Rt ly Bnown s

*Fine Trust acguired East=North Intorcomection Company Limited {*ENICL with efieet from 24 March 20240,

M I thee canrent year, the Towst has acguiveed GungaonsF, Ml T
Company Limited with effect from 08 fanwary 2021 god MER 1T

smission Limited with effeet fram 28 August 2020, [hajes BT Toansen Private Limited with effect from 28 Seprember 2020, Parbat Koldam Trnsmission
issien Limited with effect from 25 March 2021,

E. STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURNS AT FAIR VALUE

Par

41 March 2021 31 March 2020
R mill 5

Tetal comprebensive smvome (2 per the statement o prelitend 1o AAZTH SAGT20
Adil: other changes in fair value feg., io property, phant & cqupment (1F cost model i fellowed |} oot recegnized in total comprehensive moome 28,2800 B,54552
Total Retwrn A1,635.90 13,602.72

Notes:
L Fabr value of assels as at 31 Maveh 2021 aned as a0 31 March 2020 and other chinges in
ppmntad wider the hoe T pegulativas,

rvatue lor the vear then eoded as disclused in the above tables are based on i valition repontissied by the dependent valye

2. Sensitivity anibysis with respect Lo significant unebservible mpats used o the Gir vilie measurement has been disclosed in Hote 274,




A)

]

(i}

of Net Disty fe Cash Flows (NDCFs) of India Grid Trust
Deseription Year ended 31 March 2021 | Year ended 31 March 2020
(Audited) (Audited)

Cash Nows received from the Portfolla Assels in the form of interest 11,370.40 10,114.90
Cash flows received from the Portlolio Assets in the fopm of dividend 413.89 -
Any other incame aceruing at IndiGrid level and not eaptured shove, ineluding but nat limited te interestfreturn on surplus TE0 177.66
cash invested by IndiGrid
Cash fows received from the Portiolio Assels Lowards the repayment of the debt issued to the Portfolio Assets by IndiGrid 2691259 6,752.28
Procecds fram the Portfolio Assets for a capital reduction by way of 2 huy back or any other means as permitted, subject 10 - -
applicable law
Procesds from sale of assels of the Portolio Asset not disteibuted pursuant toan earlier plan 1o pesinvest, or if such -
proceeds are nol intended Lo be invested subseguently
Total cash inflow at the IndiGrid level (A) 38,775.18 17,044.84
Toosse Any payment of foes, interest and expense incurred at IndiGrid fovel, ineluding but net limited to the fees of the {5,2006.0H) {2,941.27)
Investment Manager and Trustee {refer noteiand i)
Less: Costsfretention associated with sale of assets of the Partfolio Assels: -
-related debts settled or due to be settled feom sale proceeds of Portiolio Assets; - =
~Lransaction costs paid on sale of the assets of tie Fortfolio Assers; and - -
-eapital gaing taxes on sale of assets/ shares in Portiolio Assets/ other investments. -
Less: Proceeds relnvested or planned to be reinvested in aceordance with Regulation 18(7)(a) of the TnvlT Regulations = =
Less: Repayment of external debt at the IndiGrid level and at the level of any of the underlying portolio assets fspecial = &
purpose vehicles {Exeluding reflnancing)
Loss: Income taxe (IF applicabile) at the standalone IndiGrid fevel 1.18 (56.96)
Less: Amount invested in any af the Portfolio Assets forservice of debt or interest (2h487.00) (G.HE3.29)
Less: Repaie work in relation to the projects undertaken by any of the Fortfolio Assels - -
Total cash outflows / retention at IndiGrid level (B) (30,692.80} (9,811.53)
Net Distributable Cash Flows [C) = (A+B) 8,082,138 | 7.203.32

Notes :

i Poes not include interest accryed but nol due for quarter endued 31 March
of s, 9845 million, year ended 31 March 2021: s, 34847 million and yu
il Do notinclude
March 2021 of Hs, 117.27 million and year ended March 31, 2020: Nil).

Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) of underlying Holdcos and SPVs

IndiGrid Limited (formerly known as Sterlite Grid 1 Limited) (Holdco)

2021 of Rs. 8651 milliun, quarter ended 31 Maech 2020 of Bs, 6210 million, guarter endoed 31 December 2020
onded 31 Mareh 2020: Bs. 150.51 million) related to market linked non convertible debentures {'MLDS which
1 otk expensis for the quarter ended 31 March 2021 of Nif, quarter ended 31 December 2020-0f Rs 26,08 million, yuarter ended 310 March 2020: Nil, yeur ended 31

Description Year ended 31 March 2021 | Year ended 31 March 2020
fAudited) (Audited)

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account {A) 851.22 (B84.64)
Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisalion (1481.96) AioAs
AddfLess: Decreasef{increase) In working capital 50,50 193
A Interest acerued on loan/non=coivestible doebentures issued to IndiGrid G304 62104
A fless: Lossfgain on sale of infrastructure assets - -
Adel: Procewds rom sabe of infrastroctuee assels adjusted for the following -
related debls settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; ¥ %
=dhirectly attrbutable transacton costs; - -
-proveeds reinvested or pl 1o bee puj d as per Regulation 18(7}a}of the Invll Regulations - -
Add: Procecds from sale of infeastructure agsets not distributed pursuant to an carlier plan to re-invest, i such procecds are - 2
notimtended tw be ivvested subisequently, netof any profit / {toss) recopnised L profit and toss account
Less: Capital expendituree, [Tany {21.92) -
Add/less: Any other ilem of non-cash expense / non cash income [net of actual cash Hows lor these items) ~ .
sy decrease fincrease In careying amount of an asset or a lability recognised in profit and loss sceount on measurement of - -
the assetor the labifity at fairvalue:
-interest costag per effective interest rate method (difference between acerued and actual paid); % £
=deferred tax; {157.16) [160.15)
~unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures (ssuced at intercst rate lower than market sate of inlerest - -
-portion reserve for major maintenance which has nol been accounted for i profit and loss stalement; =
=ruserve [or debenture/ lom redemption (Excluding any reseeve required by any law or a8 per letder's agreement) = "
Amortization of Upfront fees
Less: Repayment of external debl {principal) / sedeemable proference shares / debetures, ete | Excluding refinancing) / -
neteash set aside Lo comply with. DSRA requirement under loan agreements
Tatal Adjustments (B) [(972.29) 902.27
Net Distributable Cash Flows (C} = (A+B] {121.07)] 17.63




(i}

(iid)

Bhopal Dhule Transmission Company Limited (BDTCL) (5PV)

Description

Year ended 31 March 2021

(Audited)

Year ended 31 March 2020

rAnditady

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account {A)

Addd: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation

Add/Less: Decrease/{increase) in working capital

Add: Interest acerued on loan /non-convertible debentures issued w ladiGrid
Addfless: Loss/gain an sale of infrastructure assets

Add: Proceeds fram sale of Infrastructure assets adjusted for the following:
=related debis seutled or due o be settled from sale proceeds:

=dlivectly attributable transaction cnsts:
=directly attributable transaction costs;
=provesds reinvested or pl d to e rein

d a5 per Regulation IR(7){a] of the vl Regalations
Add: 'rocesds from sale of infrastructuee assets pot distributed parsuant toan earbier plan to re-invest, il such proveeds are
not intended o be invested subsequently, net of any profit / {loss) recognised in profitand loss account

Liess: Capital expenditure, ifany
Addfless: Any ather item of nan-cash expense / non gash income [netof actual cash Naws for Uiese items)

-any decrese fincrease in carrying amount of an asseCor a liability recognised In prafit and foss scenunt on measurement af
the nsset or the lability ot fade valie;

-interesteost as por effective interest rate method (difference between acerued and actual paid);

=dleforrad s

-unwinding of Interest cost on interest [vee loan or other debentures;

-portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been accounted for In profit and loss statement;

~reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Excluding any reserve required by amy law or as per lender's agreciment)

Amaertization of Upfront fees

Loss on aceount ol MTM ol F/W & ECB

Non Cash ncome - Reversal of Prepayment penally

FLess: Repayment of external debt (principal) / redeemabile pre e shares /
debentures, ete. (Excluding refinancing) / net cash set aside to comply with
DERA requirement under Joan agreements

9741
To4.88
110.62

L3Z1n3

{85.26)
AQAD

3.75
113.440

(43.79)

[285.62)
707.04
(B0.41)

1305.15

(82

A0
G285

{120.95)

2,165.83

1,876.96

t m

Total Adj

Net Distributable Cash Flows {€) = (A+E)

2,263.24 |

1.591.34

Norte: During the period, amount being at feast 90% has already been distributed o [ndiGrid,

Jabalpur Tra ission Company Limited (JTCL) (SPV)

Description Year ended 31 March 2021 | Year ended 31 March 2020

(Audited) (Audited)

Profit/{loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) 329,75 (1,103.49)
Adddl: Depreciaton, ingairment and amaortisalion {L617.83) {3443}
Add/Less: Decrease/(increase) in working capltal 13183 13741
Add: Interest scerved on loan /mon-coniertible debentores ssaed Lo lndiGrid 2T 254168
Addfless: Loss/gain on sale of infrastracture assels & =
Add: Procecds from sale of mlrastructure sssets adjusted for the folluwing: - -
~related debis settled or due 1o be settled from sale procecds: = ¥
=directly attribtable transaction costs: - £
-procveeds rejnvested or planned o be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the livlT Rugulations - ¥
Add: Procceds [rom sale of inlrastructure assels not disteiboted pursuant to an carlier plin 1o re-linvest. il such proceeds are = =
not tended b be Fsubseguetitly, nel ol any profit / (loss) recognised in profitand loss accounm
Less: Capital expenditure, ifany (25,16) (21.08)
Add fless: Any other item of non-cash expense [ non cash income (el of actual cash Hows tor these items) - -
-iny decrease/ierease In careyiig amount of an assel or a liability tecogiised in profit and less account on measurement ol +
the asset o the liability at fir value;
-interest costas per effective interest rate method (dilference between accrued and actual paid );
~deferred ax: 5
=unwinding of Interost cost an Non converible debentures issued al imterest ate lower than markel vate of inlerest =
-portion eserve [m-major maintenance which has not been accaunted for in profit and loss stalement; - -
=reserve [or debenture/ loan redemption (Excluding sny reserve required by any b or as per lender's agrecment] - =
Amaortization of Upfront foes ]
Less: Repayment of external debt {principal) / redeenable preference shares f debentures, ele (Excluding refinancing) / ¥ -
mob eash set askde te comply with DSRA reguirentent under [oan agreements
Total Adjustments (H) 1,218.64 2,623,548
Net Disty e Cash Flows (C) = (A+B) | 154839 | 1,520.09

already been distributed to fediGrid,

Mote: During the periol aotount being at least 90%




{iv)

4]

Mahesk

Ta feel

Limited (MTL) (sPV)

Description

Year ended 31 March 2021

fandited)

Year ended 31 March 2020
(Audited)

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A)

Add: Depreciation, Impairment and amortisation

Add fLess: Decrease/(increase] in working capital

Add: Interest acorued on loan/nons=convertible debentures issued to IndiGrid
Add/less: Loss/pain on sale of infrastructure assets

Add: Procecds from sale of [nfiastructure assets adjusted for the following:
-related debis settled or due o be settled from sale procecds:

~directly attributable transaction costs:

-proveeds relnvested or planned Lo be

invested os per Regulation 18{71(a) of the InvIT Regulations

Add: Mroceeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed paesuant W an earlier plan Lo re-invest, i such proceeds are
ot intended o be invested suk ntly, net of any profit / (loss) recognised in profit and Inss acconnl

Luss: Capital expenditure, ifany
Add fless: Any other item of por-cash expense / non cash income (net of actual cash Movis for these items)

=any decrease/increase ln carrying amount of an asset or a liabiliy recognised in profitand loss account on measurement of
e asset or the liability at fair value:

sinterest cost as per effective Interest rate method (dilference between aceroed and actual paid);

-deferred tax;

“unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentires issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest

-purtion reserve for major maintenance which has not beed accounted for in profitand loss statement;
-reserve for debenturef loan redemption (Excluding any reserve required by any Jaw or as per lender's agrecment
Amortization of Uplront fees

Less: Repayment of external debt {principal) / redecmable preference shares / debentures, ete, (Exclhuding refinancing) /
net ensh sel aside to comphy with DSRA requirement utder loan agrecments

[157.52)
12177
18,09
SHLT0

(164}

(146.04)
121.78

{B.21)
So0.58

Total Adjustments {B)

719.92

682,15

Net Distributable Cash Flows (€] = {A+B)

S6Z.40 |

536.11

Mote: Buring the period, amount being ot least 90% has alveady boen distriboted to ndiGrid.

RAPP Transmission Company Limited (RTCL) (SPV)

Description Year ended 31 March 2021 | Year ended 31 March 2020
{Audited) (Audited)

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account {A) 10,80 27.39
Adkely Depreciution, impairment and wortsation 5,65 HA.06
AddfLess: Decrease/{increase] in working caplial 39,98 (31.37)
Al Interest acverued on loanfnoneconvertible debentures issued o lnadiGeid 33402 34517
Addfless: Loss fpaln on sake of infrastructure assets - -
Adld: Proceeds from sale ol tructuee assets adjusted for the following: - -
~related debts setted o due to be settled Trom sale proceeds: <
=directly attributable ransaction costs; =
“proveeds reinvested or planned Lo be eimvested as per Regulation 18{7)(a) of the InvlT Regulations =
Add; Proceeds from sale of infeastructure assels nol distributed puesuant an earkior plan to re-invest if such procoeds are - "
net itended o be invested subsequently, net of any profit / (loss) recognised o profit and loss account
Less: Capital expenditure, i any {7.54) -
Addfless: Any other item of ponscash expense / non cash income (net ol wclual cash Nows for these items) - -
~any decrease/inerease in carrying amount ol an asset or a lability recopmised (i pralit and loss occount on measurement of - =
the asset o the Halility at Gair value:
interest costas per effective interest rate methed (difference belween acerued and actual paid); -
~deferred Lax: = =
~unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued atinterest rate lower than market rate of interest - -
=purtisn veserve for major maintenance which has not been aecounted lar in profitand loss siatement: = =
-reserve for debenture/ loan redemplion { Excluding any reserve required by any law oras per lender's agreement] - 4
Amottization of Upfront fees .
Fass: Hepayment of external debt {principal) / redeemable preference shaves / debentures, ete (Excluding refinancing) / - -
neteast set aside W comply with BSRA requirement under loan agroements
Total Adjustments () 452.11 399.46
Net Distributable Cash Flows (€] = (A+B) 462,91 | 426.55

Bote: During the period, amount being at feast 90% has alveady been disteibuted Lo IndiGrid,




vi)

Purulia & Kharagpur Transmission Company Limited (PKTCL) (SPV)

Description

Year ended 31 March 2021

rAudited)

Year ended 31 March 2020

{udited)

Profit/ (loss) after tax as per profit and loss account [A)

Add: Depreciation, impalrment and amortisation

Add/Less: Decrease/{increase) in working capital

Add: Interest acerued on loan fnon-convertible debentures isswed Lo IndiGrid
Add fless: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets

Auld: Proceeds from sale of (nfrastructure assets adjusted for the following:
-related debits settled or due to be settied from sale proceeds;

=directly auribanable transaction costs;
=proceeds rei dorpl i 1o ber

1 as per Regulation 18(7}{a) of the InvIT Regulations

Addl: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets pot distributed pursuant toan earlier plan o re-invest, if such proceeds are
not i leid ta he | 1 Iy, net afany profit f (loss) recognised in prafitand |oss account

Less: Capital expenditure, ifany
Add/less: Any other item of non-cash expense / on ¢ash income (net of actual cash Mows for these tems)

=any decreasefinerease in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of
the: asset or the labilty st irvaloe;

-interest cost as per effective Interest rate method {difference between accrued and actual paid);

=duferred tax;

-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures fssued al interest rate lower than market rate of Interest

-portion reserve for major maintenance wiich has not been aceounted for in profit and loss stalement;
sreserve for debenture/ loan tedemption (Excuding any reserve required by any law or as per lenders agreement)
Anortization of Upfront fees

Less: Repayment of exterial debl {principal} / redeemable preference shares / debentures, ole, (Excluding refinancing) /
net cash sel asidy Lo comply with DSRA requirement under loan agreements

{22.74)

14288
53.63

SHi.6E

(3:93)

{21.19)

142.89
13

592,64

Tatal Adjustments {B)

776,20

735.71

Net Distributable Cash Flows {€) = (A+B) |

753,52 |

T14.52

Nale: During the pertod, ameunt being at feast 90% has alveady been disteibuted 1o IndiGrid,

(vii} Patran Transmission Company Limited (PTCL) (SPV)

Description Yearended 31 March 2021 | Year ended 31 March 2020
{Audited) [Audited)
Profit/{loss) after tax as per profit and loss account ("} (144,84} (168.14)
Adu: Depreciution, impaiment and amuotLisation 180.98 20558
seflincrease] In working capital 14.04 (7.94)
aceryed on luan/mon-convertible debentures issued W IndiGrid 250,78 23671
Add fless: Loss fgain on sale of infrastructure assels % 5
Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted Toe the Tollowwing: -
refated debly sottled or due to be settled fron sale proceeds; 5
tale transaction costs: i
-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18]7)(2) of the Invil Regulations - -
Addk: Proceeds lrom sale of infrastructure assels notdistributed pursuant tan earlior plan to re-lnvest, i such privceeds are & -
notintended to be invested subseguently, net of any profit / (loss) recogiised in proftand loss account
Less: Capllal expenditure, it any {7.00) -
Add/less: Any ather item of pon-cash expense / non eash income (net of actual cash Mows tor these items) = -
many decrease fincrease i eying amount of an assetor 3 fiability recognised In profitand loss account en measurement of - -
the assetor the Habillty at valin;
sinterest costas per effective interest rate method (differonce between acerued and actual paid); -
deferved tax; - =
=unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interast ste lower Uhan marked rate of interosy . =
“portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been accounted forin profit and loss statenient; = L2
-reserve for debenturef lean redemgption {(Excluding any reserve required by any lw oras per lender's agrecment) =
Amortigation of Uplront fees =
! cpayment of external debt {prindpal] f redeemable prefevence shares / debentures, ete | Excluding refinancing) / =
netcash setaside o comply with DSRA requirement under loap agreements
Total Adjustments (B) 446,80 434.35
Net Distributable Cash Flows [C) = (A+B) | 301.96 | 266,21

Note: Buring the period, amount being at least S0% has alveady been distributed o ndiGrid,




{viii] IndiGrid 1 Limited (formerly known as Sterlite Grid 2 Limited) (Holdeo)

(ix}

Description Year ended 31 March 2021 | 04 June 2019* to 31 March
(Audited}) 2020
{Audited

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account {A) (172.27) (129.37)
(pertaining to period post acquisition by IndiGrid)
Adik: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation - -
Add/Less: Decrease/{increase) in working capital 19,10 {292.84)
Add: Interest accrued on Joan fneh-convertible dobentures issued to IndiGrid 171.54 12771
Addfless: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assels - -
Add: Procecds from sale of infrasteucture assets adjusted Tor the following: - -
—refated debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; =
<direatly atuributabie tr tion costs; -
-procecds refnvested or g 1o berel Led as per Regulation 1B(7)(a) of the nviT Regulations ¥
Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant toan carlior plan to resinvest, if such proceeds are
not ntended to be invested subserquently, net of any prafit / (loss) reeognised in profit and |oss accnant - -
Tiess: Capital expenditure, iCany - -
Add/less: Aay other item of non-cash expense / non cash income [net of acual eash Rows For these items)
=any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an assebora liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of #
the asset or the Hability at fale valie:
=Interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between acorued and actual paid); - 2
-deferred 1ax - .

inding of Intorest cost on Non convertible debentures fssued at interest rate lower than macket rate of intérest - -
~portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statement: =
-reserve for debenture/ loan redemption {Excluding any reserve required by any low oras per lender's agreement) -
Amaortization of Uplront lees -
Less: Repayment of external debt (principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, ete, (Excluding refinancing) / - =
net vash setaside o comply with DSRA requirement under loan agreements
Total Adjustments (B) 190.64 {165.13)
Net Distributable Cash Flows (€} = (A+B) | 1837 | (294.50)

* Being the date of acguisition by IndiGeid,
* Reproaped

NRSS XXIX Transmission Limited (NRSS) (SPV)

Description Year ended 31 March 2021 | 04 June 2019 to 31 March
(Audited) 2020
{Audited)

Profit/[loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A} 28.31 598,65
(pertaining to period post acquisition by IndiGrid)
Add: Depreciation, mpairment and amortisation B20.58 GHIYI
Add/Less: Decrease f{lncrease) inwarking capital 243.04 [456.11)
Addd: Interest acerued on loan fnon-convertible debenlures issued Lo IndiGrid A0u0E1 348461
Add fless: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets - -
Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastrueture assets adjusted Tor the following: - -
-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds: - #
~directly attributable trassaction costs: # -
~procevds reinvested or pl A Ly B i ted as per Regulation 18(7}a) of the InvIT Regulations - -
Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets net distributed pursdant to an earlier plan W re-iavest, £ such proceeds are -
nolintended Lo be invested subsequenty, net of any profit / {loss) recognised in profitand loss account -
Less: Capital expenditure, it any {49.55) (217}
Addfless: Any other item of nor-cash expense [ non cash income [net of actual cash fows for these (tems) {12.70) -
-any decrease/increase in carvying amount of an asset ora Hability fecognised fn profit and loss account o measurement of =
Uy Lor the lability at firvalue;
“inlerest costas per effective interest rate method (difference between acerued and actual pald); -
=cleferred 1 5461 {95.30]
~unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued st interest rate lower than market rate of interest =
=porting reserve for major maintenance which has not been aceounted for in profit and loss statement; =
sreserve for debenture/ loan redemption {Exchuding any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement]
Amartization of Upfront Tees -
Less: Repayment of external debt {prineipal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, ete, {Excluding refinancing) / =
net cash set aside Lo comply with DSRA requirement under loan agreements -
Total Adjustments (B) 5,203,19 3,613.96
Net Distributable Cash Flows (€) = (A+B) | 5,231.50 | 4,212.61

* Being the date of acquisition by IndlGrid.
Note: During the period, amount being at least 0% has atready been distetbuted to IndiGrid.




™)

(xi)

IndiGrid 2 Limited (formerly known as Sterlite Grid 3 Limited) (Hloldeo)

Description Yearended 31 March 2021 | 28 June 2019 to 31 March
{Audited) 2020
rauditedy

Profit/(loss] after tax as per profit and loss account (A} (87.95) 785.52
{pertaining to period post acquisition by IndiGrid) A
Add: Depreciation, Impairment and amartisation - (H95.946)
AddfTess; Decrease/(increase} in working capital 16,39 .86
Add: Interest acerued on loan/mon-canvertible debentures ssued to IndiGrid 89.55 109.20
Add/less: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assels = =
Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: -
~related debts settled or due 1o be settied from sale proceeds; = -
-directily attributable transaction costs; - -
-proceeds rei forpl {to berei d as per Regul 18{7){a) of the InvIT Regulations - =
Adid: Proceeds from sale of infrastiructure assets not distributed pursuant to an ealier plan o resinvest, if such proceeds are
not intended to be invested subseguently, nel of any peofit / (loss) recogaised in profitand Inss account -
l.ess: Capital expenditure, itany =
Adidfless: Any other item of not-cash expense [ non cash income (el of actual cash Tows for these items)
-any decreasefincrease in carrying ameunt of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss adcount on mensurement of 5
the assetor the liahility o firvaloe;
-interest cost as per effective interest rate method {difference between averved and actual pald); z -
~eferved 1ax; =
sunwinding of Interest cost on Non convertiife debentures ssued alinterest rale lower than market rate of inlerest & -
-portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been aceonnted o In profit and loss statement; =
~reserve for debenturs/ loan redemption {Excluding any reserve vogquived by any law or as per lender’s sgresment) B
Amartimtion of Uplront fees
Less: Repayment o external debt (principal) / redecniable preference shares / debentures, ete, (Excluding refinancing) / = %
net eash et aside to comply with DSRA reguirement under loan agreements
Total Adj (7 125.94 (785.80)
Net Distributable Cash Flows {C) = {A+B) 37.99 | {0.28)

* Buing the date ol gequasition by lndiGrid,
* Regrouped

Odisha Generation Phase-1l Transmission Limited (OGPTL) {SPV)

Description Year ended 31 March 2021 | 28 June 20197 1o 31 March
(Audited) 2020
{Audited)

Prafit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) {79.36) 626.45
{pertaining to period post acquisition by IndiGrid)
Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 38140 {428.76)
Add Less: Decrease/(inceeaseld in working capital 193.14 (75.77]
Add: Interest acerued on lean mon-convertible debentures issucd to IndiGrid 905,67 621.56
Addfless: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets = =
Add: Procecds from sale ol infrastructure assets adjusted for thie Tollowing: -
“related debts settled or due to Besettled from sale proceeds: =

irectly stributable trapsaction costs; =
-procecds velnvested or plapned ta be reinvested s per Regulation 187} a) of the InvIT Regulations & =
Add: Proceeds from sale of Infiastructire assets nol distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re=lnvesl, [Fsuch proceeds are =
ntst ntended o be invested subseguentiy, net ol any profit / (loss) recognised in profitand loss account
Less: Capital expenditure, if any (437 011
Addfless: Aoy other jtem of pon-cash expense / non cash income [nel of actual cash lows for these ltems) 2 %
=any decrease/increase in earrying amount of an assetor a Hability recognised in profitand loss account on measurement of = -
the assel or the labilivy at fic value:
=interest cost as per elfective interest rate method Gdifference between acerued and sctual paid]; - =
=deferved tax; ¥ =
=upwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at imterest rate lower than market rate of interest -
~portiom reserve for major maintenance which hos not een accounted for in profil and loss statement; -
-veserve lor debenture/ loan redemption (Exchading any reserve required by any law o as per lender's agreement) =
Amortization of Upfront lees =
Less: Repayment of external debt {prmeipal} / redeemable preference shares § debentures, ete. [Excluding refliancing) / =
et cash set astde b comply with DERA requirement under loan agreements
Total Adjustments (B) 1,463.51 117,14
Net Distributable Cash Flows {C) = (A+B) 1,384.15 ] 743.59

= Being the date of acouisition by IndiGrid.
Note: During the period, amonnt being at least 2009 bas aleeady been distributed to hudiGrid,




(i)

{xiii)

East-North Interconnection Company Limited (ENICL}(SPV)

Description Year ended 31 March 2021 | 24 March 2020* to 31 March
(Audited) 2020
{Unaudited)
refernotez) |

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account [A) (10597} 065
(pertaining to peried post acquisition by IndiGrid)
Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 556,50 12.27
Add/Less: Decrease f{increase] in working capital 14100 1ot
Add: Interest acerued on loan /non-convertible debentures issued 1o IndiGrid 31010 -
Adidyf ossfgaln on sale of infrastructure assots . -
Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructyre assets adjusted lor the following: e
srelated debts settiled or due 1o be settled from sale procecds; - 5
=directly aitribuwtable transaction costs;
~provesds reinvested or pl d 1o be rei i as per Regul 18(7){a) of the InelT Regulatinns - -
Adel: Proceeds from sale of infragtructure assets not distributed pursaant to an earfier plan to re-invest, if such proceads are -
not intended Lo be invested subsequently, net of any profit £ (loss) recognised in profit and loss account
Less: Capital expenditure, if any (3.20} -
Adid fless: Any other fem of non-cash expense / non cash income (net of actual eash fows Tor these items) - ]
-any decreasefinceense in carrying amount of an assetor a liabilily recognised in profit and Loss account on measurement of 3 £
the asset or the liability at fale value;
-Interest costas per ellfective interest rate methad (difference belween acerued and actual paid); 3 ]
~deferred tg = .
~unwinding of Interest cost an Non eonvertible debentures issued atinterest rate lower than marked rate of interest = -
=portlon reserve for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in prefitand loss statement; = 2
=reserve o debenture/ loan redemption (Exchuding any reserve required by any law oras per lender’s agreement] B
Amaortization of Upfront fees - X
Less: Repaymaent of external debt {principal} / redeemable preference shares / debentures, ete (Excluding refinancing) / =
netcash seaside Lo comply with. DSRA requivement under loan agreementy
Total Adjustinents (B) 1,004.58 26.90
Net Distributable Cashi Flows {C) = (A+B) B98.61 27.61 |
* Being the date of acquisition by lndiGrid,
Narbe: Daring the period, amoust belog at least 90% has already been distributed to IndiGrid,
Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission Limited (GPTL) [SPV)

Description 28 August 20207 to 31

March 2021
{Audited)

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account {A) {64.16)
(pertaining to period post acquisition by IndiGrid)
Add: Depreciation, tpaivment and amortisation 210.11
Add fLess: Decrease f{increase) in working capital 12094
Adhid: Interest acorued on loan/men-convertible debentures issued to IndiGeid 25270
Add fless: Loss fgain on sale of infrastrueture assets -
Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted lor the following: -
-refated debis settled or due Lo be settled from sale proceeds: *
~directly attributalile Uransaction cosls; %
-proceeds reinvested or pl d Lo be rei 1 as per Regulation 18{T)(a) of the InvI'T Regulations .
Add: Proceeds fram sale of infrastrocture assets ot disteibuted pursiant o an earlier plan o re-invest, 1f such proceeds are .
not histended o be invested subsequently, netof any profit / (loss) recognised In profit and foss account
Liess: Capital expenditure, [Tany .02
Adid fless: Any other item of non-cash expense f non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these lLems) {1.10]
~any decrease/increase m careying ameunt of an asset or a liability recognised n profitand Joss account on measurement of =
the asset of the liability ot Tairvalue;
-interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference belween ascrued and actual pad); -
~deferved {21.68)
-unwinding of Interest cost on Non converlible debentures issued atinterest rate lower Uy market Fite of inorest -
-partion reserye for major maintenance which has not been accounted for i profitand |oss stalement:
=reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Excluding any reserve reguired by any law or as per lender’s agrovment) -
Amuortization of Uplront fees 117.56
Less: Repayaent of external debt (principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentsres, ete (Excluding refinancing) / {0u0H)
net cash set aside to comply with. DSRA requiresent uhder loas agreements
Total Adjustments {1T) 678.54
Net Distributable Cash Flows (€] = (A+H) 614.38

* Heing the date of aequisition by IndiGrid.
Motes During the period, amount being al

st 9090 has already Been disteibited w ndiGrid,




{xiv]) Jhajjar KT Transco Private Limited (JKTPL) (SPV)

(xv)

Description

28 September 20207 1o 31
March 2021

raudited)

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A)

{pertaining to peried post acquisition by IndiGrid)

Add; Depreciation, impairment and amortisation

AddfLess: Decrease/{incrense) in working capital

Add: Interest accrued on loan /hon-convertible debentures issued to IndiGrid

Add/less: Loss/paln on sale of infrastructiure assets

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the foll owing:

-related debis setiled or duc to be settled from sale proceeds:

-directly attributable transaclion costs;

-proveeds reinvested or planned ta be reinvested as per Regulation 18{7}{a) of the lavIT Regulations

Add: Procecds from sale of infrastructure assets not disiribuled porsuant to an earlier plan (o resinvest, il such proceeds are
not i ded o be invested sul Iy, net ofany profit / {loss) recognised in profitand loss account

Less: Capital expenditure, iFany
Addfless: Any other item of non-cash expense /non cash income (nel of actual cash Aows for these lems)

-any decrease finerease in carrying amount afan asset ora lability recognised in profit and lnss secount on mensurement of
the assel or the liability at fair value:

“interest costas poe effective inlerest rate method (difference between acerued and actual paid);

“teferred tox:

-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures Issued a1 interest rate lower than market eate of Interest

=purtion reserve fo majer maintenance which has not been accounted for tn profit and Joss stement;
=reserve for debenturef luan redemption (Excluding any reserve required by any law or a8 por lender's agreement)
Amortization of Upfront fees

Luss: Repayment of external debl (principal) / redeemalile preference shaves § debentures, ete, (Excluding relinancing) /
neteash set aside to comply with DSRA requirement under loan agreements

(7.82)

(240}

201

Tolal Adjustments (B)

196,39

Nel Distributable Cash Flows (€] = (A+B]

188,57

* Being the date of avquisition by IndiGrid,
Mole: During the peviod, smount being at least 90% has alveady been distributed o lndiGrid,

Parbati Kold T PH—

p Limited {PrKTCL) (SPV)

Description

08 [anuary 2021 to 31
March 2021

{ 1

Profil/(loss) alter tax as per profit and loss account [A)

(pertaining to period post acquisition by IndiGrid)

Al Depreciation, impairment and aimortisation

Addd fLess: Decrease/(increase) in working capital

Al Interest acorued on loanfaon-convertible debentures issucd to lndiGrid

Add fless: Loss/gain on sale of infrasticeture assels

Addd; Procecds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following:

~related debis settled or due to e settled from sale proceeds;

~directly attributable transaction costs;

-provecds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation W 7)(a) of the oyl Regalations

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assels nol distributed pursuant to an earlier plan o re-imvest A0 such proceeds are:
nat intended tobe § { sul Iy, netalany profit / (loss) recognised in profic and oss account

Liss: Capltal expenditore, 1L any
Addfless: Any other item of non-cash expense / non cash income {net of actual cash Mows for these items}

-any decrease/increase i carrying amoeunt of an asset or a liability recognised in profitand loss aceount on mensurenent of
e asset or the lability ot Tair value;

=interest cost as per effective interest rate method [dilference belween ac
~delerred tay;

-unwinding of Interest coston Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest

rued and actual paid);

-portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been aceonnted for in profit and loss statement;
-reserve for debemture/ loan redemption (Exeluding any ceserve required by any law oras per lender's agreement]
Amortizatian of Uplront fees

Repayment of external debl (principal] / redeemable preference shaves / debentures, ote (Bxeluding relinancing) /
net cash sel aside W comply with DSRA roquirement wnder loan agreements

L

69.0%

BHE4Z
15663

{7.73]

(13.06)

(187)

(HY.64)

Total Adjustments (1)

133.24

Net Distributable Cash Flows [€] = (A+B)

202.34

* Being the date of seguisition by Inditrid.
Mote: During the period, ameunt being at lesst 90% has already been distributed w lndiGrd,




(v}

NER Il Transmission Limited (NER] (SPV)

Description

25 March 2021* to 31 March
2021
(Audited)

Profit/{loss} afler tax as per profit and loss account [A)

(pertaining to period post acquisition by IndiGrid)

Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation

AddLess: Decrease/{increase) in working capital

Adid: Interest acorued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to IndiGrid

Add /less: Lossfgain on sale of infrostruciure assets

Add: Praceeds lram sale of nfeastructure assets adjusted for the following:

-related debis settled or due Lo be settled from sale proceeds:

-directly attributable transaction costs;

-proceeds reinvested or planned Lo be reinvesled as per Regulation 18{7)(a] of the InvIT Regulations

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructuee assels not distributed pursuant o an earller plan to re-invest, it such procecds are
ft intended 1o be invested subseguently, net of any profit / (loss) recngrised in proficand loss aceonmt

Fiss: Capital expondityre, if any
Add fless: Any other item of nen-cash expense f non cash income (net of actual cash Qows for these items]

-any decreasefincrease in carrying amount of an asset o a liability recognised in profit and loss account an measurement of
the asset or the liahility at fair value;

-interest costas per effeetive interest rate method (dierence belween acerued and actual pald);

~tleferred tax;

-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures [ssued at interest rate lower than market eate of interest

-portion reseeve formajor maintenance which bas not been accounted for i profit and Joss slatement;
-reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Exclud ing any reserve required by any kaw or as per lender's agrecment]
Amortization of Upfront fees

Luss: Repayment of external debt (principal) / redeemable preference shaves / debentures, ete. (Bxcluding refinancing) /
neteash setaside to comply with DSRA requivement under loan agreements

(4647}

1i1d
(62.13)
5813

Total Adjustments (B)

114

Net Distributable Cash Flows (€] = (A+B)

(36.33)

* Being the date of aoguisition by IndiGrld,
MNote: Duriag the period, amount being at least 90% has already been distributed to IndiGrd,
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I.  Group information

The consolidated [inancial statements comprise financial statements of India Grid Trust (“the Trust or “IndiGrid™)
and its subsidiaries (collectively. the Group) for the yvear ended March 31, 2021, IndiGrid is an irrevocable trust settled
by Sterlite Power Grid Ventures Limited (the "Sponsor") on October 21, 2016 pursuant to the Trust Deed under the
provisions ol the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and registered with Securities Exchange Board of India (*SEBI™) under the
SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 as an Infrastructure Investment Trust on November 28,
2016 having registration number IN/InvIT/16-17/0005, The Trustee of IndiGrid is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the
"Trustec"). The Investment manager for IndiGrid is Indigrid Investment Managers Limited (the "Investment
Manager" or the "Management").

The objectives of IndiGrid are to undertake activities as an infrastructure investment trust in accordance with the
provisions of the InvIT Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of IndiGrid is to own and invest in
power transmission assets in India with the objective of producing stable and sustainable distributions to unitholders,

As at March 31, 2021, IndiGrid has lollowing project entities which are transmission infrastructure projects developed
on Build, Own, Operate and Maintain ("BOOM’) basis:

Bhopal Dhule Transmission Company Limited (BDTCL")
Jabalpur Transmission Company Limited ('JTCL")

RAPP Transmission Company Limited ('RTCL"

Purulia & Kharagpur Transmission Company Limited (PKTCL')
Maheshwaram Transmission Limited ('MT1L")

Patran Transmission Company Limited ("PTCL’)

NRSS XXIX Transmission Limited ("NTL")

Odisha Generation Phase-11 Transmission Limited (-OGPTL")
9. Hast=North Interconneetion Company Limited ("ENICL)

10. Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission Limited (-GPTL")

1. Parbati Koldam I'tansmission Company Limited (PrKTCL)
12, NER II Transmission Limited ("NER™)

BN e

Asat March 31, 2021, IndiGrid has following project entities which are transmission infrastructure projects developed
on Build, Operate and Transfer ("BOT") basis:

. Jhajjar KT Transco Private Limited (“JKTPLY)

These SPVs have exceuted Transmission Services Agreements (“I'SAs™) with Long term ransmission customers
under which the SPVs have (o maintain the transmission infrastructure for 35-25 vears post commissioning.

The address of the registered oflice of the Investment Manager is Maker Maxity. 5 North Avenue, Level 5, Bandra
Kurla Complex, Bandra East Mumbai Maharashtra, India 400 031. The consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issue in accordance with resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager on 26
May 2021.

2. Significant Aecounting Policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated [inancial statements comprise of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31. 2021, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income. the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unit Holders' Equity for the
yvear then ended and the Consolidated Statement of Net Assels at [air value as at March 31. 2021 and the
Consolidated Statement of Total Returns at fair value and the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows ("NDCFs™)
of the Trust. the underlying holding company (“HoldCo™) and cach of its subsidiaries for the year then ended and a
summary ol significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135(as
amended), preseribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Ind AS") read with SEBI (Infrastructure
Investment Trusts) Regulations. 2014, as amended and the cireulars issued thereunder ("InvIT Regulations").
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the lollowing
assets and liabilitics which have been measured at fair value:

e Derivative {inancial instruments
e Certain financial assets measured at [air value (e.g. Liquid mutual funds)

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Millions. except when otherwise indicated.
2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Trust and its subsidiaries as at 31

March 2021. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specilically, the Group

controls an investee if and only il the Group has:

= Power over the investee (i.c. existing rights that give it the current ability 1o direet the relevant activitics of the
investee)

= Exposure. or rights, to variable returns [rom its involvement with the investee, and

= The ability to use its power over the investee Lo aftect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and

when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights ol un investee, the Group considers all relevant

lacts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

= The contractual arrangement with the other vole holders ol the investee

= Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

= The Group™s voting rights and potential voting rights

= The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other
voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee il facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes

Lo one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control

over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Asscts, liabilities, income and expenses

ol a subsidiary acquired or disposed ol during the vear are included in the consolidated financial statements from the

date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other

events in similar circumstances. 11 a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the

consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments
are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure
conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The [inancial statements of all entities used lor the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporling date as

that o' the parent. i.c.. year ended on 31 March,

Consolidation procedure:

(a). Combine like items of asscts. labilitics, cquity. income. expenses and cash flows ol the parent with those of its
subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses ol the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and
liabilities recognized in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

(b). Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in cach subsidiary and the parents portion of
equity of cach subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

(). Eliminate in full intragroup assets and labilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to ransactions
between entities of the group (prolits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognized in
assels, such as inventory and lixed assets, are eliminated in [ull). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment
that requires recognition in the consolidated (inancial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary
dilferences that arise lrom the climination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup tansactions.

Profit or loss and each component ol other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the unit holders of the Trust

and to the non-controlling interests (il'any), even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balanee,

When necessary, adjustments are made to the [inancial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Groups accounting policies. All intra-group assets and linbilities, equity. income, expenses and cash

ows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

=z
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A change in the ownership inlerest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
I the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

= Derecognizes the assets (including goodwilly and liabilities of the subsidiary
= Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

= Derecognizes the cumulative translation dilferences recorded in equity

= Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received

= Recognizes the [air value of any investment retained

= Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

= Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in OCI to profit or loss or retained carnings,
as appropriate, as would be required il the Group had direetly disposed of the related assets or liabilities,

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The lollowing is the summary of significant accounting policics applied by the Group in preparing its consolidated
linancial statements:

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is
current when it is:

Lixpected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating eycle
Ield primarily for the purpose ol trading

®  Expected Lo be realised within twelve months after the reporting period or

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

= [tis expected to be settled in the normal operating eycle

= [tis held primarily for the purpose of trading

= [Lisdue to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period or

®  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Group classilies all other liabilities as non=current.
Delerred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The Operating eyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash
equivalents. The Group has identilied twelve months as its operating cycle.

b) Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated  [inancial statements are presented in INR, which is its functional curreney. The Group
does not have any foreign operation.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencics ave initially recorded by the Group at their respeetive funetional currency spot rates
at the dute the transaction lirst qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign
curreneies are translated at the funetional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
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¢) Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments such as mutual funds at fair value at each balance sheet date.

lair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place cither:

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

= In the absence ol a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be aceessible by the Group. |

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their cconomic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-linancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability 1o generate
cconomic benelits by using the asset in its highest and best use ot by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sulficient data are
available to measure fair value. maximising the use of relevant abservable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated (inancial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant o
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1= Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities:

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant o the fair value measurement is
direetly or indirectly observable;

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the [air value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

In estimating the fair value of transmission assets/projects. the Group engages independent qualified external valuers
to perform the valuation. The management works closely with the external valuers to establish the appropriale
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. 'The management in conjunction with the external valuers also compares
the change in fair value with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable. The management
reports the valuation report and (indings to the Board ol the Investment Manager hall’ yearly to explain the cause of
{luctuations in the fair value of the transmission projects.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movement in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re-measured or reassessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the management
verilies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to
contracts and other relevant documents.

For the purpose ol [air value disclosures, the Group has determined elasses of assets and liabilities on the basis ol the
nature, characteristics und risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hicrarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related diselosures are given in the relevant
notes.

" Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hicrarchy
" Disclosures lor valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions
= Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)
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d) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that rellects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. The Group has coneluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the services before transferring them to the customer.

Power transmission services

Revenue from contracts with customers comprises of revenue from power transmission services rendered in India to
Long Term Transmission Customers (L'TTCs) pursuant to the respective Transmission Services Agreements (TSAs)
executed by the Group with LTTCs for periods of 35 years. The Group is required to ensure that the transmission
assets meet the minimum availability criteria under the respective TSAs, The Group's performance obligation under
the TSAs isto provide power transmission services. The performance obligation is satisfied over time as the customers
receive and consume the benelits provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs. Accordingly, the
revenue from power transmission serviecs is recognised over time based on the transmission assel availabilities and
the tarilT charges approved under the respeetive CERC tarifT orders and includes unbilled revenues acerued up to the
end ol the accounting period. The payment is generally due within 60 days upon receipt of monthly inveice by the
cuslomer.

Regulatory Assets and revenue:

The group determines revenue gap for the period (i.e shortiall in actual returns over assured returns) based on the
principles laid down under the CERC regulations and tarilT orders issued by CERC. In respect of such revenue gaps,
appropriate adjustments. have been made (or the respective periods on a conservative basis in accordance with
accounting policies and the requirement of Ind AS 114, “regulatory deferral accounts™ read with guidance note on
rate regulated activities issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, ("ICAT™)

Service Concession Arrangements:

The group through one of'its subsidiaries also has operating and maintaining the power transmission system including
sub-station constructed to provide services for a specified period of time in accordance with the transmission
agreement entered into with the grantor.

Under Appendix 12 to Ind AS 115, this arrangement is considered as Service Concession Arrangement and in
accordance with para 16 of the Appendix D o Ind AS 115, rights to receive the consideration (rom the grantor for
providing services has heen recognised as "financial assets”.

Finance Income for Service Concession Arrangements under finance assets model is recognised using effective
interest rate method. Revenue from operations and maintenance services are separately recognised in each period as
and when services are rendered,

Contract balances

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c. only the passage of
time is required before payvment of the consideration is due). Amounts which have been billed to the customers are
disclosed as Trade receivables and amounts which are to be billed to the customers (and not conditional on the group’s
future performance) are disclosed under Other financial assets. Refer accounting policies for financial assets in
Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

e) Interest income/Dividend income

Interest income is acerued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable.

Income from dividend on investments is accrued in the year in which it is declared, whereby the Group's right 1o
receive is established.
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f) Taxation

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the amount expected 1o be recovered from or paid to the tax
authorities. The tax rates and tax Jaws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Current income lax relating to items recognised outside statement ol profit or loss is recognised outside statement of
profit or loss (cither in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to
the underlying transaction cither in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for linancial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. except:

= When the deferred tx liubility arises [rom the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, afTects neither the accounting profit nor
tuxable prolit or loss;

®  Inrespeet ol taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
juint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresecable [uture.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deduetible temporary difTerences. the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused fax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary difTerences, and the carry forward of unused tax eredits and
unused tax losses can be utilized, exeept:

" When the deferred tax asset relating 1o the deductible temporary difference arises [rom the initial recognition of’
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, alfects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

= Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, delerred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the lemporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the tem porary
dilferences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufTicient taxable profit will be available tw allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at cach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that [uture taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assel o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply in the vear when the asset is
realised or the liability is setiled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantivel y enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of profit
or loss, Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in QCI or directly in
cquity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities arc offset if'a legally enforceable right exists W set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Sales/value added/goods and service taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and asscts are recognised net ol the amount of sales/value added/goods and service taxes paid, except:

= When the tax incurred on a purchase ol assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authori ty. in which
case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense iten,
as applicable,
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s When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part of receivables or payables
in the balance sheet.

g) Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, il any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projeets il the recognition eriteria are met. When significant parts of the
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their
specific uselul lives. Likewise. when a major inspection is performed. its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of
the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred. No decommissioning liabilities are expected or be
incurred on the assets of plant and equipment.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activily is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction
period is capitalised as part of the construction costs to the extent the expenditure can be attributable to construction
aclivity or is incidental there to. Income carned during the construction period is deducted from the total of the indireet
expenditure.

Depreciation is caleulated on a straight-line basis over the estimated uselul lives ol the assets as [ollows:

Asset Category Useful Life considered Useful life (Schedule 11#)
Leaschold improvements Lease Period™® 30
Buildings (substation) 25 30
Substations 25-35 40
Transmission lines {including components) 25-35 40
Plant and machinery 2-5 15
Data Processing Equipment {Computers) 35 3-6
Furniture and Fittings 5-7.3 10
Ollice equipment’s 4-5 3
Motor Vehicles 8 8
Roads 10 10

# Schedule I 1o the Companies Act, 2013 which is applicable to the subsidiary companies.
*Leaschold improvements are depreciated over the uselul life of the asset or the lease period, whichever is lower

The Group. based on technical assessments made by technical experts and management estimates, depreciates
buildings (substation) and certain items of plant and equipment, data processing equipment. furniture and [(ittings,
office equipment and vehicles over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful lives prescribed in
Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013 which is applicable to the subsidiary companies. The management bhelieves
that these estimated uselul lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation ol the period over which the assets are
likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future cconomic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derccognition
ol the asset (caleulated as the difTerence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively. il appropriate.
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h) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs direetly attributable to the acquisition, construetion or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
dilferences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

i)  Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That s, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identilicd asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as lessee

The Group applics a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. except lor short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-ol-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-usc assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c.. the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets arc measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement ol lease liabilities. The cost of right-of=use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or belore the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and the estimated uselul lives of the asscts, as Tollows:

" OfTice Premises 3 vears

Lease Liabilities

Althe commencement date ol the lease. the Group recognises lease liabilitics measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term, The lease payments inelude fixed pavments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments
that do nol depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories)
in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment oceurs,

In caleulating the present value of lease payments. the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate al the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. Afler the
commenecement date, the amount of Tease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for the
lease pavments made, In addition. the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to [uture payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment ol an option to purchase the
underlying assel.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (see Note 32).

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption o its short-term leases of machinery and equipment
(i.c.. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease ol low-value assets recognition exemption to leases ol oflice equipment
that are considered o be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Ciroup as lessor

Leases in which the Group does not wransier substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are

classified as operating leases. Rental income [rom operating lease is accounted on a straight=line basis over the lease
1s. [nitial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of

i
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the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised
as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

j)  Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an assel may be impaired. If any
indication exists. or when annual impairment testing for an assel is required. the Group estimates the assel’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those [rom other assets or groups of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. the asset is considered impaired and is written
down Lo its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determinin g
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. 11 no such transactions can be
identitied, an appropriate valuation model is used. These caleulations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices (or publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment caleulations on detailed budget and forecast caleulations. These budgets are prepared
[or the entire project life,

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

An assessment is made at cach reporting date as o whether there is any indication that previously recognisecd
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have deercased. 11 such indication exists, the Group estimates the
asset’s or cash-gencrating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the assets recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the earrying amount that would have been determined, net ol depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless
the asset is carried at o revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

k) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result ol a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benelits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all ol a provision
to be reimbursed. for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate assel, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement ol
profit or loss net o' any reimbursement.

[I"the efTect of the time value ol money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects.
when appropriate. the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage ol time is recognised as a finance cost.

Iy  Financial instruments

A linancial instrument is any contraet that gives rise to a financial assct of one entity and 4 finaneial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All linancial assets are recognised initially at (air value plus. in the case ol [inancial assets not recorded at [air value
through profit or loss. transaction costs that are altributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales
ol financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
wrket place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.c., the date that the Group commits to purchase
J the asset.
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The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exceplion of trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant {inaneing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical exp